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Principal business of the Company: exploration, development and production of oil and natural gas and other minerals and refining,
transportation, marketing and distribution of oil and petroleum products and petroleum derivatives, including petrochemicals, chemicals and
non-fossil fuels, biofuels and their components, generation of electric power from hydrocarbons, rendering telecommunications services, as well
as the production, industrialization, processing, marketing, preparation services, transportation and storage of grains and its derivatives.
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Duration of the Company: through June 15, 2093.
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YPF SOCIEDAD ANONIMA AND CONTROLLED AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND DECEMBER 31, 2010

(amounts
expressed
in million
of
Argentine
pesos -
Note 1.a to
the primary
financial
statements)
(The
financial
statements
as of
September
30, 2011
are
unaudited)
2011 2010

Current Assets
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Cash 659 570
Investments (Note 2.a) 1,852 1,957
Trade receivables (Note 2.b) 3,373 3,322
Other receivables (Note 2.c) 4,231 3,089
Inventories (Note 2.d) 5,842 3,865
Total current assets 15,957 12,803
Noncurrent Assets
Trade receivables (Note 2.b) 24 28
Other receivables (Note 2.c) 902 1,587
Investments (Note 2.a) 634 594
Fixed assets (Note 2.e) 35,335 31,567
Intangible assets 9 10
Total noncurrent assets 36,904 33,786
Total assets 52,861 46,589
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable (Note 2.f) 9,410 7,639
Loans (Note 2.g) 6,807 6,176
Salaries and social security 436 421
Taxes payable 1,704 2,571
Contingencies 355 295
Total current liabilities 18,712 17,102
Noncurrent Liabilities
Accounts payable (Note 2.f) 6,382 5,616
Loans (Note 2.g) 3,734 1,613
Salaries and social security 174 168
Taxes payable 465 523
Contingencies 2,631 2,527
Total noncurrent liabilities 13,386 10,447
Total liabilities 32,098 27,549
Shareholders Equity 20,763 19,040
Total liabilities and shareholders equity 52,861 46,589

Notes 1 to 4 and the accompanying exhibits A and H to Schedule I and the primary financial statements
of YPF, are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these statements.

ANTONIO GOMIS SAEZ
Director
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YPF SOCIEDAD ANONIMA AND CONTROLLED AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2010

(amounts
expressed
in million
of
Argentine
pesos,
except for
per share
amounts in
Argentine
pesos  Note
l.a to the
primary
financial
statements)
(The
financial
statements
as of
September
30, 2011
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and
September
30, 2010
are
unaudited)
2011 2010
Net sales 41,437 31,849
Cost of sales (29,980) (20,866)
Gross profit 11,457 10,983
Selling expenses (Exhibit H) (2,618) (2,182)
Administrative expenses (Exhibit H) (1,351) (1,015)
Exploration expenses (Exhibit H) (384) (178)
Operating income 7,104 7,608
Income on long-term investments 81 78
Other expense, net (112) 23)
Financial income (expense), net and holding gains:
Gains on assets
Interests 118 87
Exchange differences 328 176
Holdings gains on inventories 883 467
Losses on liabilities
Interests (735) (664)
Exchange differences (649) (400)
Net income before income tax 7,018 7,329
Income tax 2,512) (2,604)
Net income 4,506 4,725
Earnings per share 11.46 12.01

Notes 1 to 4 and the accompanying exhibits A and H to Schedule I and the primary financial statements of
YPF, are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these statements.

ANTONIO GOMIS SAEZ
Director




Edgar Filing: YPF SOCIEDAD ANONIMA - Form 6-K

Back to Contents

Schedule 1
30f3

English
translation of
the financial
statements
originally
filed in
Spanish with
the
Argentine
Securities
Commission
( CNV ),
except for
the inclusion
of Note 12 to
the primary
financial
statements in
the English
translation.
In case of
discrepancy,
the financial
statements
filed with the
CNV prevail
over this
translation.

YPF SOCIEDAD ANONIMA AND CONTROLLED AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2010
(amounts expressed in million of Argentine pesos Note 1.a to the primary financial statements)

(The financial statements as of September 30, 2011 and September 30, 2010 are unaudited)

2011 2010
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income 4,506 4,725
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows provided by operating activities:
Income on long-term investments (81) (78)
Depreciation of fixed assets 4,019 4,114
Consumption of materials and fixed assets retired net of allowances 651 380
Income tax 2,512 2,604
Increase in accruals 644 706
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables 89 (342)
Other receivables (321) (1,346)
Inventories (1,977) (892)
Accounts payable 1,539 382
Salaries and social security 18 35
Taxes payable 71 67

13
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Decrease in accruals (480) (441)
Interests, exchange differences and others 700 431
Dividends of long-term investments 27 8
Income tax payments (3,508) (1,676)
Net cash flows provided by operating activities 8,409(1) 8,677
Cash Flows used in Investing Activities
Acquisitions of fixed assets (7,954)® (5,597)@
Investments (non cash and equivalents) 18 115
Net cash flows used in investing activities (7,936) (5,482)
Cash Flows used in Financing Activities
Payment of loans (11,559) (9,462)
Proceeds from loans 13,823 9,814
Dividends paid 2,753) (2,163)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (489) (1,811)
(Decrease) increase in Cash and Equivalents (16) 1,384
Cash and equivalents at the beginning of year 2,527 2,145
Cash and equivalents at the end of period 2,511 3,529
(Decrease) increase in Cash and Equivalents (16) 1,384

For
supplemental
information
on cash and
equivalents,
see Note 2.a.

(1) Includes (307) and (234) corresponding to interest payments for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
(2) Includes (117) and (115) corresponding to payments related with the extension of certain exploitation concessions in the Provinces of Mendoza and Neuquén

(Note 9.c to the primary financial statements), for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Notes 1 to 4 and the accompanying exhibits A and H to Schedule I and the primary financial statements
of YPF, are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these statements.

ANTONIO GOMIS SAEZ

Director
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YPF SOCIEDAD ANONIMA AND CONTROLLED AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

(amounts
expressed
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where
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statements
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September
30, 2011
and
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September
30, 2010
are
unaudited)

1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to General Resolution No. 368 from the Argentine Securities Commission ( CNV ), YPF Sociedad Anénima (the Company or YPF )
discloses its consolidated financial statements, included in Schedule I, preceding its primary financial statements. Consolidated financial

statements are supplemental and should be read in conjunction with the primary financial statements.

a) Consolidation policies:
Following the methodology established by Technical Resolution No. 21 of the Argentine Federation of Professional Councils in Economic
Sciences ( FACPCE ), YPF has consolidated its balance sheets and the related statements of income and cash flows as follows:

Investments and income (loss) related to controlled companies in which YPF has the number of votes necessary to control corporate
decisions are substituted for such companies assets, liabilities, net revenues, costs and expenses, which are aggregated to the Company s
balances after the elimination of intercompany profits, transactions, balances and other consolidation adjustments and minority interest if
applicable.

Investments and income (loss) related to companies in which YPF holds joint control are consolidated line by line on the basis of the
Company s proportionate share in their assets, liabilities, net revenues, costs and expenses, considering the elimination of intercompany
profits, transactions, balances and other consolidation adjustments.

Investments in companies under control and joint control are detailed in Exhibit C to the primary financial statements.

b) Financial statements used for consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements are based upon the latest available financial statements of those companies in which YPF holds control or
joint control, taking into consideration, if applicable, significant subsequent events and transactions, available management information and
transactions between YPF and the related companies, which could have produced changes to their shareholders equity.

16
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¢) Valuation criteria:
In addition to the valuation criteria disclosed in the notes to YPF s primary financial statements, the following additional valuation criteria have
been applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Salaries and Social Security Benefit Plans
YPF Holdings Inc., which has operations in the United States of America, has certain defined-benefit plans and postretirement and
postemployment benefits.

The funding policy related to the defined-benefit plans as of September 30, 2011, is to contribute amounts to the plan sufficient to meet the
minimum funding requirements under governmental regulations, plus such additional amounts as Management may determine to be appropriate.

In addition, YPF Holdings Inc. provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for eligible retired employees, and also certain insurance,
and other postemployment benefits for eligible individuals in case employment is terminated by YPF Holdings Inc. before their normal
retirement. Employees become eligible for these benefits if they meet minimum age and years of service requirements. YPF Holdings Inc.
accounts for benefits provided when payment of the benefit is probable and the amount of the benefit can be reasonably estimated. No assets
were specifically reserved for the postretirement and postemployment benefits, and consequently, payments related to them are funded as claims
are notified.

The plans mentioned above are valued at net present value, are accrued on the years of active service of employees and are disclosed as
non-current liabilities in the Salaries and social security account. Actuarial losses and gains related to changes in actuarial assumptions are
disclosed in Other expense, net account of the statement of income.

Recognition of revenues and costs of construction activities

Revenues and costs related to construction activities performed by controlled companies, are accounted by the percentage of completion method.
‘When adjustments in contract values or estimated costs are determined, any change from prior estimates is reflected in earnings in the current
period. Anticipated losses on contracts in progress are expensed as soon as they become evident.

17
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2. ANALYSIS OF THE MAIN ACCOUNTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Details regarding the significant accounts included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010

a) Investments: 2011 2010
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
Short-term investments 1,8521) 274 1,957 45()
Long-term investments 66423 6282
Allowance for reduction in value of holdings in long-term
investments (5723 (79)@
1,852 634 1,957 594

(1) Corresponds to investments with an original maturity of less than three months.

(2) In addition to those companies under significant influence and other companies detailed in Exhibit C to the primary financial statements, includes the
interest in Gas Argentino S.A. ( GASA ). On May 19, 2009, GASA filed a voluntary reorganization petition ( concurso preventivo ), which was opened on
June 8, 2009. The book value of this investment has been fully reserved.

(3)In June 2011, YPF Inversora Energética S.A., a wholly owned subsidiary of YPF, subscribed an option with BG Inversiones Argentinas S.A. and BG
Argentina S.A., pursuant to which it obtained the right to acquire the interest these companies maintain in GASA. If exercised, YPF Inversora Energética
S.A. sinterest in GASA could increase up to 100%, subject to the fulfillment of certain conditions precedent related to the execution of such option.

(4) Corresponds to restricted cash as of September 30, 2011, and December 31, 2010, which represents bank deposits used as guarantees given to government

agencies.
b) Trade receivables: 2011 2010
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
Accounts receivable 3,482 24 3,450 28
Related parties 352 339
3,834 24 3,789 28
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (461) 467)
3,373 24 3,322 28
¢) Other receivables: 2011 2010
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
Tax credits, export rebates and
production incentives 2,582 27 1,882 814
Trade 234 178
Prepaid expenses 355 71 174 78
Concessions charges 9 28 17 27
Related parties 169 281 151 2561
Loans to clients 28 61 26 70
Trust contributions  Obra Sur 21 118 13 115

18
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Advances to suppliers 260 250

Collateral deposits 154 42 165 56

Advances and loans to

employees 75 51

Receivables with partners in

joint ventures 54 235 94

Miscellaneous 383 50 275 93
4,324 913 3,182 1,603

Allowance for other doubtful

accounts (93) (93)

Allowance for valuation of other

receivables to their estimated

realizable value (11) (16)
4,231 902 3,089 1,587

19
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(1) In addition to the balances with non-consolidated related parties detailed in Note 7 to the primary financial statements, mainly include 281 and 257 with
Central Dock Sud S.A., as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, for loans granted that accrue in average an annual fixed interest rate
of 4.80%.

9
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d) Inventories: 2011 2010
Finished products 3,965 2,377
Crude oil and natural gas 1,207 1,061
Products in process 71 67
Raw materials, packaging materials and others 599 360

5,842 3,865

e) Fixed assets: 2011 2010
Net book value of fixed assets (Exhibit A) 35,427 31,669
Allowance for unproductive exploratory drilling 3)
Allowance for obsolescence of material and equipment 92) 99)

35,335 31,567

f) Accounts payable: 2011 2010

Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
Trade 7,398 39 6,170 34
Hydrocarbon wells abandonment obligations 176 5,622 243 5,228
Related parties 271 309
Investments in companies with negative shareholders equity 5
Extension of Concessions Province of Mendoza 424 107
From joint ventures and other agreements 481 409
Environmental liabilities 243 202 302 205
Miscellaneous 417 412 201 149
9,410 6,382 7,639 5,616
g) Loans: 2011 2010
Interest Principal
rates(") maturity Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
Negotiable Obligations® 4.00-14.49% 2012-2028 19 964 361 626
Related parties 3.72% 2013 526 458 97
Other financial debts 0.55-15.45% 2011-2016 6,788) 2,244 5,357 890
6,8074) 3,734 6,176 1,613

(1) Annual interest rate as of September 30, 2011.

(2) Disclosed net of 51 and 52, corresponding to YPF outstanding Negotiable Obligations, repurchased through open market transactions as of September 30,

2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

21
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(3) Includes approximately 8,344 corresponding to loans agreed in U.S. dollars, 8,171 accrue fixed interest at rates between 0.55% and 4.90%, and 173 accrue
variable interest of LIBO plus a spread between 4.37% and 5.25%.

(4) As of September 30, 2011, 7,786 accrue fixed interest, 301 accrue variable interest of BADLAR plus 2.60% and 2,454 accrue variable interest of LIBO plus
a spread between 3.35% and 5.25%.

10
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3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES IN RELATED COMPANIES

Laws and regulations relating to health and environmental quality in the United States of America affect nearly all the operations of YPF
Holdings Inc. These laws and regulations set various standards regulating certain aspects of health and environmental quality, provide for
penalties and other liabilities for the violation of such standards and establish in certain circumstances remedial obligations.

YPF Holdings Inc. believes that its policies and procedures in the area of pollution control, product safety and occupational health are adequate

to prevent reasonable risk of environmental and other damage, and of resulting financial liability, in connection with its business. Some risk of
environmental and other damage is, however, inherent in particular operations of YPF Holdings Inc. and, as discussed below, Maxus Energy
Corporation ( Maxus ) and Tierra Solutions Inc. ( Tierra ), both controlled by YPF Holdings Inc., could have certain potential liabilities associated
with operations of Maxus former chemical subsidiary.

YPF Holdings Inc. cannot predict what environmental legislation or regulations will be enacted in the future or how existing or future laws or
regulations will be administered or enforced. Compliance with more stringent law regulations, as well as more vigorous enforcement policies of
the regulatory agencies, could in the future require material expenditures by YPF Holdings Inc. for the installation and operation of systems and
equipment for remedial measures, possible dredging requirements, among other things. Also, certain laws allow for recovery of natural resource
damages from responsible parties and ordering the implementation of interim remedies to abate an imminent and substantial endangerment to
the environment. Potential expenditures for any such actions cannot be reasonably estimated.

In the following discussion, references to YPF Holdings Inc. include, as appropriate and solely for the purpose of this information, references to
Maxus and Tierra.

In connection with the sale of Maxus former chemical subsidiary, Diamond Shamrock Chemicals Company ( Chemicals ) to Occidental
Petroleum Corporation ( Occidental ) in 1986, Maxus agreed to indemnify Chemicals and Occidental from and against certain liabilities relating
to the business or activities of Chemicals prior to the selling date, September 4, 1986 (the selling date ), including environmental liabilities
relating to chemical plants and waste disposal sites used by Chemicals prior to the selling date.

As of September 30, 2011, accruals for the environmental contingencies and other claims totaled approximately 737. YPF Holdings Inc. s
Management believes it has adequately accrued for all environmental contingencies, which are probable and can be reasonably estimated;
however, changes in circumstances, including new information or new requirements of governmental entities, could result in changes, including
additions, to such accruals in the future. The most significant contingencies are described in the following paragraphs:

Newark, New Jersey. A consent decree, previously agreed upon by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ( EPA ), the New Jersey
Department of Environmental Protection and Energy ( DEP ) and Occidental, as successor to Chemicals, was entered in 1990 by the United States
District Court of New Jersey and requires implementation of a remedial action plan at Chemical s former Newark, New Jersey agricultural
chemicals plant. The interim remedy has been completed and paid for by Tierra. This project is in the operation and maintenance phase. YPF
Holdings Inc. has accrued approximately 59 as of

September 30, 2011, in connection with such activities.

Passaic River, New Jersey. Maxus, complying with its contractual obligation to act on behalf of Occidental, negotiated an agreement with the
EPA (the 1994 AOC ) under which Tierra has conducted testing and studies near the Newark plant site, adjacent to the Passaic River. While
some work remains, the work under the 1994 AOC was substantially subsumed by the remedial investigation and feasibility study ( RIFS ) being
performed and funded by Tierra and a number of other entities of the lower portion of the Passaic River

11
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pursuant to a 2007 administrative settlement agreement (the 2007 AOC ). The parties to the 2007 AOC are discussing the possibility of further
work with the EPA. The entities that have agreed to fund the RIFS have negotiated an interim allocation of RIFS costs among themselves based
on a number of considerations. The 2007 AOC is being coordinated with a joint federal, state, local and private sector cooperative effort
designated as the Lower Passaic River Restoration Project ( PRRP ). As of September 30, 2011, approximately 70 entities, including Tierra, have
agreed to participate in the RIFS in connection with the PRRP.

The EPA s findings of fact in the 2007 AOC (which amended the 1994 AOC) indicate that combined sewer overflow/storm water outfall
discharges are an ongoing source of hazardous substances to the Lower Passaic River Study Area. For this reason, during the first semester of
2011, Maxus and Tierra negotiated with the EPA, on behalf of Occidental, an Administrative Settlement Agreement and Order on Consent for
Combined Sewer Overflow/Storm Water Outfall Investigation ( CSO AOC ), which became effective in September 2011. Besides providing for a
study of combined sewer overflows in the Passaic River, the CSO AOC confirms that there will be no further obligations to be performed under
the 1994 AOC. Tierra estimates that the total cost to implement the CSO AOC is approximately US$ 5 million and will take approximately 2

years to complete. Pursuant to an agreement with the cooperating parties group for the 2007 AOC, Tierra will be responsible for 50% of the cost

of the CSO AOC.

In 2003, the DEP issued Directive No. 1 to Occidental and Maxus and certain of their respective related entities as well as other third parties.
Directive No. 1 seeks to address natural resource damages allegedly resulting from almost 200 years of historic industrial and commercial
development along a portion of the Passaic River and a part of its watershed. Directive No. 1 asserts that the named entities are jointly and
severally liable for the alleged natural resource damages without regard to fault. The DEP has asserted jurisdiction in this matter even though all
or part of the lower Passaic River is subject to the PRRP. Directive No. 1 calls for the following actions: interim compensatory restoration,
injury identification, injury quantification and value determination. Maxus and Tierra responded to Directive No. 1 setting forth good faith
defenses. Settlement discussions between the DEP and the named entities have been held, however, no agreement has been reached or is
assured.

In 2004, the EPA and Occidental entered into an administrative order on consent (the 2004 AOC ) pursuant to which Tierra (on behalf of
Occidental) has agreed to conduct testing and studies to characterize contaminated sediment and biota and evaluate remedial alternatives in the
Newark Bay and a portion of the Hackensack, the Arthur Kill and Kill van Kull rivers. The initial field work on this study, which includes
testing in the Newark Bay, has been substantially completed. Discussions with the EPA regarding additional work that might be required are
underway. EPA has issued General Notice Letters to a series of additional parties concerning the contamination of Newark Bay and the work
being performed by Tierra under the 2004 AOC. Tierra proposed to the other parties that, for the third stage of the RIFS undertaken in Newark
Bay, the costs be allocated on a per capita basis. As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, the parties have not agreed to Tierra s
proposal. However, YPF Holdings lacks sufficient information to determine additional costs, if any, it might have with respect to this matter
once the final scope of the third stage is approved, as well as the proposed distribution mentioned above.

In December 2005, the DEP issued a directive to Tierra, Maxus and Occidental directing said parties to pay the State of New Jersey s cost of
developing a Source Control Dredge Plan focused on allegedly dioxin-contaminated sediment in the lower six-mile portion of the Passaic River.
The development of this plan was estimated by the DEP to cost approximately US$ 2 million. The DEP has advised the recipients that (a) it is
engaged in discussions with the EPA regarding the subject matter of the directive, and (b) they are not required to respond to the directive until
otherwise notified.

In June 2007, EPA released a draft Focused Feasibility Study (the FFS ) that outlines several alternatives for remedial action in the lower eight
miles of the Passaic River. These alternatives range from no action, which would result in comparatively little cost, to extensive dredging and
capping, which according to the

12
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draft FFS, EPA estimated could cost from US$ 0.9 billion to US$ 2.3 billion and are all described by EPA as involving proven technologies that
could be carried out in the near term, without extensive research. Tierra, in conjunction with the other parties working under the 2007 AOC,
submitted comments on the legal and technical defects of the draft FES to EPA. In light of these comments, EPA decided to initiate its review
and informed that a revised remedy proposal will be forthcoming during the first semester of 2012. Tierra will respond to any further EPA
proposal as may be appropriate at that time.

In August 2007, the National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration ( NOAA ) sent a letter to a number of entities it alleged have a liability for
natural resources damages, including Tierra and Occidental, requesting that the group enters into an agreement to conduct a cooperative
assessment of natural resources damages in the Passaic River and Newark Bay. In November 2008, Tierra and Occidental entered into an
agreement with the NOAA to fund a portion of the costs it has incurred and to conduct certain assessment activities during 2009. Approximately
20 other PRRP members have also entered into similar agreements. In November 2009, Tierra declined to extend this agreement.

In June 2008, the EPA, Occidental, and Tierra entered into an AOC ( Removal AOC ), pursuant to which Tierra (on behalf of Occidental) will
undertake a removal action of sediment from the Passaic River in the vicinity of the former Diamond Alkali facility. This action will result in the
removal of approximately 200,000 cubic yards (153,000 cubic meters) of sediment, which will be carried out in two different phases. The first
phase, which commenced in July 2011, encompasses the removal of 40,000 cubic yards (30,600 cubic meters) of sediments and is expected to be
completed by the end of 2012. The second phase involves the removal of approximately 160,000 cubic yards (122,400 cubic meters) of
sediment. This second phase will start after according with EPA certain development s aspects related to it. Pursuant to the Removal AOC, the
EPA has required the provision of financial assurance in the amount of US$ 80 million for the performance of the removal work. The Removal
AOC provides that the initial form of financial assurance is to be provided through a trust fund. YPF Holdings Inc. originally accrued US$ 80
million with respect to this matter. As of September 30, 2011, US$ 42 million has been funded and additional US$ 10 million must be
contributed every six months, until the completion of the US$ 80 million. The total amount of required financial assurance may be increased or
decreased over time if the anticipated cost of completing the removal work contemplated by the Removal AOC changes. Tierra may request
modification of the form and timing of financial assurance for the Removal AOC. During 2010, with EPA approval, letters of credit to provide
financial assurance have been issued, in order to avoid the restriction of additional funds. During the removal action, contaminants which may
have come from sources other than the former Diamond Alkali plant, will necessarily be removed. YPF Holdings Inc. and its subsidiaries may
seek cost recovery from the parties responsible for such contamination, provided contaminants origins were not from the Diamond Alkali plant.
However, as of the date of issuance of these financial statements, it is not possible to make any predictions regarding the likelihood of success or
the funds potentially recoverable in a cost-recovery action.

Additionally, in December 2005, the DEP sued YPF Holdings Inc., Tierra, Maxus and other several companies, besides to Occidental, alleging a
contamination supposedly related to dioxin and other hazardous substances discharged from Chemicals former Newark plant and the
contamination of the lower portion of the Passaic River, Newark Bay, other nearby waterways and surrounding areas. The DEP seeks
remediation of natural resources damaged and punitive damages and other matters. The defendants have made responsive pleadings and filings.
In March 2008, the Court denied motions to dismiss by Occidental Chemical Corporation, Tierra and Maxus. The DEP filed its Second
Amended Complaint in April 2008. YPF filed a motion to dismiss for lack of personal jurisdiction. The motion mentioned previously was
denied in August 2008, and the denial was confirmed by the Court of Appeal. Notwithstanding, the Court denied to plaintiffs motion to bar third
party practice and allowed defendants to file third-party complaints. Third-party claims against approximately 300 companies and governmental
entities (including certain municipalities) which could have responsibility in connection with the claim were filed in February 2009. DEP filed
its Third Amended Complaint in August 2010, adding Maxus International Energy Company and YPF International S.A. as additional named
defendants. In September 2010, Governmental entities of the State of New Jersey and a number of third-party defendants filed their dismissal
motions and Maxus and Tierra filed their
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responses. DEP has not placed dollar amounts on all its claims, but it has (a) contended that a US$ 50 million cap on damages under one of the
New Jersey statutes should not be applicable, (b) alleged that it has incurred approximately US$ 118 million in past cleanup and removal costs ,
(c) is seeking an additional award between US$ 10 and US$ 20 million to fund a study to assess natural resource damages, (d) notified Maxus
and Tierra s legal defense team that DEP is preparing financial models of costs and of other economic impacts and, (e) is seeking reimbursement
for external legal fees paid. In October 2010, a number of public third-party defendants filed a motion to sever and stay and the DEP joined their
motion, which would allow the DEP to proceed against the direct defendants. However, the judge has ruled against this motion in November
2010. Third-party defendants have also brought motions to dismiss, which have been rejected by the assistant judge in January 2011. Some of

the mentioned third-parties appealed the decision, but the judge denied such appeal in March 2011. In May 2011, the judge issued Case
Management Order XVII ( CMO XVII ), which contains the Trial Plan for the case. This Trial Plan divides the case into two phases, each with its
own mini-trials. Phase One will determine liability and Phase Two will determine damages. Following the issuance of CMO XVII, the State of
New Jersey and Occidental filed motions for partial summary judgment. The State filed two motions: the first one against Occidental and Maxus
on liability under the Spill Act, and against Tierra on liability under the Spill Act. In addition, Occidental filed a motion for partial summary
judgment that Maxus owes a duty of contractual indemnity to Occidental for liabilities under the Spill Act. In July and August 2011, the judge
ruled that, although the discharge of hazardous substances by Chemicals has been proved, liability allegation cannot be made if the nexus
between any discharge and the alleged damage is not established. Additionally, the Court ruled that Tierra has Spill Act liability to the State
based merely on its current ownership of the Lister Avenue site and that Maxus has an obligation under the 1986 Stock Purchase Agreement to
indemnify Occidental for any Spill Act liability arising from contaminants discharged on the Lister Avenue site.

As of September 30, 2011, there are approximately 450 accrued, comprising the estimated costs for studies, the YPF Holdings Inc. s best
estimate of the cash flows it could incur in connection with remediation activities considering the studies performed by Tierra, and the estimated
costs related to the agreement, as well as certain other matters related to Passaic River and the Newark Bay. However, it is possible that other
works, including interim remedial measures, may be ordered. In addition, the development of new information on the imposition of natural
resource damages, or remedial actions differing from the scenarios that YPF Holdings Inc. has evaluated could result in additional costs to the
amount currently accrued.

Hudson County, New Jersey. Until 1972, Chemicals operated a chromite ore processing plant at Kearny, New Jersey ( Kearny Plant ). According
to the DEP, wastes from these ore processing operations were used as fill material at a number of sites in and near Hudson County. DEP has
identified over 200 sites in Hudson and Essex Counties alleged to contain chromite ore processing residue either from the Kearny Plant or from
plants operated by two other chromium manufacturers.

The DEP, Tierra and Occidental, as successor to Chemicals, signed an administrative consent order with the DEP in 1990 for investigation and
remediation work at 40 chromite ore sites in Hudson and Essex Counties alleged to be impacted by the Kearny Plant operations.

Tierra, on behalf of Occidental, is presently performing the work and funding Occidental s share of the cost of investigation and remediation of
these sites. In addition, financial assurance has been provided in the amount of US$ 20 million for performance of the work. The ultimate cost of
remediation is uncertain. Tierra submitted its remedial investigation reports to the DEP in 2001, and the DEP continues to review the report.

Additionally, in May 2005, the DEP took two actions in connection with the chrome sites in Hudson and Essex Counties. First, the DEP issued a
directive to Maxus, Occidental and two other chromium manufacturers directing them to arrange for the cleanup of chromite ore residue at three
sites in New Jersey City and the conduct of a study by paying the DEP a total of US$ 20 million. While YPF Holdings Inc. believes that Maxus
is improperly named and there is little or no evidence that Chemicals chromite ore residue was sent to any of these sites, the DEP claims these
companies are jointly and severally liable
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without regard to fault. Second, the State of New Jersey filed a lawsuit against Occidental and two other entities seeking, among other things,
cleanup of various sites where chromite ore processing residue is allegedly located, recovery of past costs incurred by the state at such sites
(including in excess of US$ 2 million allegedly spent for investigations and studies) and, with respect to certain costs at 18 sites, treble damages.
The DEP claims that the defendants are jointly and severally liable, without regard to fault, for much of the damages alleged. In February 2008,
the parties reached an agreement in principle, for which Tierra, on behalf of Occidental, will pay US$ 5 million and will perform remediation
works in three sites, with a total cost of approximately US$ 2 million. This agreement in principle has been memorialized in a draft Consent
Judgment between and among DEP, Occidental and two parties, which was published in the New Jersey Register in June 2011 and became
effective in September 2011.

In November 2005, several environmental groups sent a notice of intent to sue the owners of the properties adjacent to the former Kearny Plant

(the adjacent property ), including among others Tierra, under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The stated purpose of the lawsuit, if
filed, would be to require the noticed parties to carry out measures to abate alleged endangerments to health and the environment emanating

from the Adjacent Property. The parties have entered into an agreement that addresses the concerns of the environmental groups, and these

groups have agreed, at least for now, not to file suit.

Pursuant to a request of the DEP, in the second half of 2006, Tierra and other parties tested the sediments in a portion of the Hackensack River
near the former Kearny Plant. Tierra has submitted work plans for additional sampling requested by the DEP and is presently awaiting DEP
comments.

In March 2008, the DEP approved an interim response action plan for work to be performed at the Kearny Plant by Tierra and the adjacent
property by Tierra in conjunction with other parties. As of the date of issuance of these financial statements, work on the interim response action
has begun. This adjacent property was listed by EPA on the National Priority List in 2007. In July 2010, EPA notified Tierra, along with three
other parties, which are considered potentially responsible for this adjacent property and requested to conduct a RIFS for the site. The parties
have responded and are awaiting discussion with the EPA as to the scope of activities. At this time, it is unknown if work beyond what was
agreed to with the DEP will be required.

As of September 30, 2011, there are approximately 80 accrued in connection with the foregoing chrome-related matters. The study of the levels
of chromium has not been finalized, and the DEP is still reviewing the proposed actions. The cost of addressing these chrome-related matters
could increase depending upon the final soil actions, the DEP s response to Tierra s reports and other developments.

Painesville, Ohio. In connection with the Chemical s operation until 1976 of one chromite ore processing plant ( Chrome Plant ), the Ohio
Environmental Protection Agency ( OEPA ) ordered to conduct a RIFS at the former Painesville s Plant area. OEPA has divided the Painesville
Work Site into 20 operable units, including operable units related to groundwater. Tierra has agreed to participate in the RIFS as required by the
OEPA. Tierra submitted the remedial investigation report to the OEPA, which report was finalized in 2003. Tierra will submit required

feasibility reports separately. In addition, the OEPA has approved certain work, including the remediation of specific operable units within the
former Painesville Works area and work associated with the development plans discussed below (the Remediation Work ). The Remediation
Work has begun. As the OEPA approves additional projects related to investigation, remediation, or operation and maintenance activities for
each operable unit within the Site, additional amounts will need to be accrued.

Opver fifteen years ago, the former Painesville Works site was proposed for listing on the national Priority List under the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended ( CERCLA ); however, the EPA has stated that the site will not
be listed so long as it is satisfactorily addressed pursuant to the Director s Order and OEPA s programs. As of the date of issuance of these
financial statements, the site has not been listed. YPF Holdings Inc. has accrued a total of 59 as of September 30, 2011 for its estimated share of
the cost to perform the RIFS, the remediation work and other operation and maintenance activities at this site. The scope and nature of any
further investigation or remediation that may be required cannot be determined at this time; however, as the RIFS progresses, YPF
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Holdings Inc. will continuously assess the condition of the Painesville s plants works site and make any required changes, including additions, to
its accrual as may be necessary.

Other Sites. Pursuant to settlement agreements with the Port of Houston Authority and other parties, Tierra and Maxus are participating (on
behalf of Chemicals) in the remediation of property required Chemicals former Greens Bayou facility where DDT and certain other chemicals
were manufactured. Additionally, in 2007 the parties have reached an agreement with the Federal and State Natural Resources Trustees
concerning natural resources damages. In 2008, the Final Damage Assessment and Restoration Plan/Environmental Assessment was approved,
specifying the restoration projects to be implemented.

During the first semester of 2011, Tierra negotiated, on behalf of Occidental, a draft Consent Decree with governmental agencies of the United
States and Texas addressing natural resource damages at the Greens Bayou Site. This Consent Decree, when signed, will incorporate by
reference the Final Damage Assessment and Restoration Plan/Environmental Assessment which specifies the restoration projects to be
implemented. Although the primary work was largely finished in 2009, some follow-up activities and operation and maintenance remain
pending. As of September 30, 2011, YPF Holdings Inc. has accrued 17 for its estimated share of remediation activities associated with Greens
Bayou facility.

In June 2005, the EPA designated Maxus as a PRP at the Milwaukee Solvay Coke & Gas site in Milwaukee, Wisconsin. The basis for this
designation is Maxus alleged status as the successor to Pickands Mather & Co. and Milwaukee Solvay Coke Co., companies that the EPA has
asserted are former owners or operators of such site. Preliminary works in connection with the RIFS of this site commenced in the second half of
2006. YPF Holdings Inc. has accrued 9 as of September 30, 2011 for its estimated share of the costs of the RIFS. YPF Holdings Inc. lacks
sufficient information to determine additional costs, if any, it might have in respect of this site.

Maxus has agreed to defend Occidental, as successor to Chemicals, in respect of the Malone Services Company Superfund site in Galveston
County, Texas. This site is a former waste disposal site where Chemicals is alleged to have sent waste products prior to September 1986. It is
subject of enforcement activities by the EPA. Although Occidental is one of many PRPs that have been identified and have agreed to an AOC,
Tierra (which is handling this matter on behalf of Maxus) presently believes the degree of Occidental s alleged involvement as successor to
Chemicals is relatively small.

Chemicals has also been designated as a PRP with respect to a number of third party sites where hazardous substances from Chemicals plant
operations allegedly were disposed or have come to be located. At several of these, Chemicals has no known relationship. Although PRPs are
typically jointly and severally liable for the cost of investigations, cleanups and other response costs, each has the right of contribution from
other PRPs and, as a practical matter, cost sharing by PRPs is usually effected by agreement among them. As of September 30, 2011, YPF
Holdings Inc. has accrued approximately 1 in connection with its estimated share of costs related to certain sites and the ultimate cost of other
sites cannot be estimated at the present time.

Black Lung Benefits Act Liabilities. The Black Lung Benefits Act provides monetary and medical benefits to miners disabled with a lung
disease, and also provides benefits to the dependents of deceased miners if black lung disease caused or contributed to the miner s death. As a
result of the operations of its coal-mining subsidiaries, YPF Holdings Inc. is required to provide insurance of this benefit to former employees
and their dependents. As of September 30, 2011, YPF Holdings Inc. has accrued 12 in connection with its estimate of these obligations.

Legal Proceedings. In 2001, the Texas State Controller assessed Maxus approximately US$ 1 million in Texas state sales taxes for the period of
September 1, 1995 through December 31, 1998, plus penalty and interest. In August 2004, the administrative law judge issued a decision
affirming approximately US$ 1 million of such assessment, plus penalty and interest. YPF Holdings Inc. believes the decision is erroneous, but
has paid the revised tax assessment, penalty and interest (a total of approximately US$ 2 million) under protest. Maxus filed a suit in Texas state
court in December 2004 challenging the administrative decision. The matter will be reviewed by a trial de novo in the court action.
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In 2002, Occidental sued Maxus and Tierra in state court in Dallas, Texas seeking a declaration that Maxus and Tierra have the obligation under
the agreement pursuant to which Maxus sold Chemicals to Occidental to defend and indemnify Occidental from and against certain historical
obligations of Chemicals, notwithstanding the fact that said agreement contains a twelve-year cut-off for defense and indemnity obligations with
respect to most litigation. Tierra was dismissed as a party, and the matter was tried in May 2006. The trial court decided that the twelve-year
cut-off period did not apply and entered judgment against Maxus. This decision was affirmed by the Court of Appeals in February 2008. Maxus
has petitioned the Supreme Court of Texas for review. This lawsuit was denied. This decision will require Maxus to accept responsibility of
various matters which it has refused indemnification since 1998 which could result in the incurrence of costs in addition to YPF Holdings Inc. s
current accruals for this matter. Maxus has paid approximately US$ 17 million to Occidental, and remains in discussions with Occidental
regarding additional costs for US$ 0.3 million. Most of the claims that had been rejected by Maxus based on the twelve-year cut-off period, were
related to Agent Orange . All pending Agent Orange litigation was dismissed in December 2009, and although it is possible that further claims
may be filed by unknown parties in the future, no further significant liability is anticipated. Additionally, the remaining claims received and
refused consist primarily of claims of potential personal injury from exposure to vinyl chloride monomer ( VCM ), and other chemicals, although
they are not expected to result in significant liability. However, the declaratory judgment includes liability for claims arising in the future, if any,
related to this matters, which are currently unknown as of the date of issuance of these financial statements, and if such claims arise, they could
result in additional liabilities for Maxus. As of September 30, 2011, YPF Holdings Inc. has accrued approximately 1 in respect to these matters.

In March 2005, Maxus agreed to defend Occidental, as successor to Chemicals, in respect of an action seeking the contribution of costs incurred
in connection with the remediation of the Turtle Bayou waste disposal site in Liberty County, Texas. The plaintiffs alleged that certain wastes
attributable to Chemicals found their way to the Turtle Bayou site. Trial for this matter was bifurcated, and in the liability phase Occidental and
other parties were found severally, and not jointly, liable for waste products disposed of at this site. Trial in the allocation phase of this matter
was completed in the second quarter of 2007, and following post judgment motions, the court entered a decision setting Occidental s liability at
15.96% of the past and future costs to be incurred by one of the plaintiffs. Maxus appealed this matter. In June 2010, the Court of Appeals ruled
that the District Court had committed errors in the admission of certain documents, and remanded the case to the District Court for further
proceedings. Maxus took the position that the exclusion of the evidence should reduce Occidental s allocation by as much as 50%. The District
Court issued its Amended Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law in January 2011, requiring Maxus to pay, on behalf of Occidental, 15.86%
of the past and future costs to be incurred by one of the plaintiffs. On behalf of Occidental, Maxus filed its notice of appeal, which remains
pending. As of September 30, 2011, YPF Holdings Inc. has accrued 16 in respect of this matter.

YPF Holdings Inc., including its subsidiaries, is a party to various other lawsuits and environmental situations, the outcomes of which are not
expected to have a material adverse effect on YPF s financial condition or its future results of operations. YPF Holdings Inc. accruals legal
contingences and environmental situations that are probable and can be reasonably estimated.

4. CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company organizes its reporting structure into four segments which comprise: the exploration and production, including contractual

purchases of natural gas and crude oil purchases arising from service contracts and concession obligations, as well as crude oil intersegment

sales, natural gas and its derivatives sales and electric power generation ( Exploration and Production ); the refining, transport, purchase and
marketing of crude oil and refined products ( Refining and Marketing ); the petrochemical operations ( Chemical ); and other activities, not falling
into these categories, are classified under Corporate and Other , which principally includes corporate administration costs and construction
activities.
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Operating income (loss) and assets for each segment have been determined after intersegment adjustments.
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Exploration Refining
and and Corporate  Consolidation
Production = Marketing Chemical and Other  Adjustments Total

Nine-month period ended September 30, 2011
Net sales to unrelated parties 3,403 33,736 1,836 1,023 39,998
Net sales to related parties 770 669 1,439
Net intersegment sales 14,057 1,247 1,671 413 (17,388)
Net sales 18,230 35,652 3,507 1,436 (17,388) 41,437
Operating income (loss) 4,086 3,061 1,035 (942) (136) 7,104
Income on long-term investments 81 81
Depreciation 3,391 455 76 97 4,019
Acquisitions of fixed assets 6,235 1,511 548 134 8,428
Assets 28,152 19,025 3,738 3,165 (1,219) 52,861
Nine-month period ended September 30, 2010
Net sales to unrelated parties 3,502 24,807 1,620 601 30,530
Net sales to related parties 674 645 1,319
Net intersegment sales 13,065 1,217 1,369 237 (15,888)
Net sales 17,241 26,669 2,989 838 (15,888) 31,849
Operating income (loss) 5,147 2,722 585 (735) (111) 7,608
Income on long-term investments 69 9 78
Depreciation 3,542 403 79 90 4,114
Acquisitions of fixed assets 4,140 950 326 92 5,508
Year ended December 31, 2010
Assets 26,245 14,043 2,779 4,624 (1,102) 46,589

Export sales, net of withholdings taxes, for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 were 5,014 and 4,282, respectively.

Export sales were mainly to the United States of America and Brazil.

ANTONIO GOMIS SAEZ
Director
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Schedule I
Exhibit A

English translation of the financial statements originally filed in Spanish with the Argentine Securities Commission ( CNV ), except for the

inclusion of Note 12 to the primary financial statements in the English translation.
In case of discrepancy, the financial statements filed with the CNV prevail over this translation.

YPF SOCIEDAD ANONIMA AND CONTROLLED AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FIXED ASSETS

EVOLUTION
(amounts expressed in million of Argentine pesos Note 1.a to the primary financial statements)

(The financial statements as of September 30, 2011 and September 30, 2010 are unaudited)

2011
Cost
Amounts
at Net Net decreases, Amounts
beginning  translation reclassifications at end of

Main account of year effect @ Increases and transfers period

Land and buildings 3,385 16 29 3,430

Mineral property, wells and related equipment 66,530 10 591 3,093 70,224

Refinery equipment and petrochemical plants 11,442 3 312 11,757

Transportation equipment 1,997 13 61 2,071

Materials and equipment in warehouse 1,317 1,468 971) 1,814

Drilling and work in progress 5,574 5,511 (2,961) 8,124

Exploratory drilling in progress 248 791 (328) 711

Furniture, fixtures and installations 941 7 71 1,019

Selling equipment 1,532 99 1,631

Other property 1,022 28 (73) 977

Total 2011 93,988 10 8,4286) (668)(s) 101,758
Total 2010 85,121 13 5,508 (411) 90,231
2011 2010
Depreciation
Net book
Accumulated Net decreases, Accumulated Net book value as Net book
at beginning reclassifications Depreciation at end of value as of value as of

[ain account of year and transfers rate Increases period 09-30-11 09-30-10 12-31-10
and and
1ildings 1,282 (@)) 2% 56 1,337 2,093 2,077 2,103
lineral property, 49,599 1 @ 3,345 52,945 17,279®  15,254@ 16,931®

ells and related
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7,614 1) 4-10% 422
1,488 (3) 4-5% 54
761 10% 71
1,236 2 10% 48
339 5
2015 2016
$ 6,362,322 $ 47,488,413
1,112,891 809,371
349,917 6,381,198
3,834,992 6,232,572
(1,266,394)
3,520,933
(44,281,066)
558,856 769,819

(10,053,754)

(3,707,993)

(11,803,585)

(1,812,448)

3,954,035

8,035 3,722 3,632
1,539 532 506
1,814 1,068
8,124 5,250
711 197
832 187 194
1,286 345 300
Year Ended December 31,
2017
$ 87,131,169
1,745,134
963,979
968,603
6,133,812

3,828

509

1,317

5,574

248

180
296

2017

Three
Months
Ended
March 31,

2018

$ 7,486,496 $(3,161,192)

197,739

450,833

328,247

1,502,837

(7,533,292)

269,456

617,772

1,546,734

4,415,925
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(881,938)

3,640,787
339,924

61,319

(1,850,676)
(2,129,084)

14,920,243

(564,230)

8,297,802
670,369

32,639

(1,053,857)

(2,940,757)

$ 20,575,879

(450,707)

(48,228,290)
2,150,450

127,270

(289,563)
(4,192,614)

$ 22,635,498

(356,198)

(414,858)
546,808

21,263

(13,734)

(999,587)

(448,901)

380,501
470,376

31,483

(5,297)

(1,173,496)

$ 1,486,010 $ 2,673,905
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RISK FACTORS
An investment in our Class A common stock involves risks. You should carefully consider all of the information
contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement before deciding whether to invest in our Class A
common stock. In particular, you should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below as well as
those described in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, our most recent Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
and any subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or Current Reports on Form 8-K we file after the date of this

prospectus supplement and before the termination of this offering. The occurrence of any of these risks might cause
you to lose all or part of your investment in the offered securities.

Risks Related to Our Class A Common Stock and this Offering

The trading price of our Class A common stock may be volatile or may decline regardless of our operating
performance and you may not be able to resell your shares at or above the offering price.

The market price of our Class A common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to a number of factors, most of
which we cannot control, including:

our operating and financial performance and prospects;

our quarterly or annual earnings or those of other companies in our industry;

the public s reaction to our press releases, our other public announcements and our filings with the SEC;

quarterly variations in our operating results compared to market expectations;

changes in, or failure to meet, earnings estimates or recommendations by research analysts
who track our common shares or the stock of other companies in our industry;

adverse publicity about us, the industries we participate in or individual scandals;

announcements of new offerings by us or our competitors;

stock price performance of our competitors;

the limited trading market for our Class A common stock;
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the failure of research analysts to cover our Class A common stock;

fluctuations in stock market prices and volumes;

default on our indebtedness;

actions by competitors;

changes in senior management or key personnel;

changes in financial estimates by securities analysts;

negative earnings or other announcements by us or other companies in our industry;

downgrades in our credit ratings or the credit ratings of our competitors;

incurrence of indebtedness or issuances of capital stock;

our ability to consummate acquisitions and successfully integrate and operate acquired businesses;

the potential adverse impact of recent U.S. tax legislation on our financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows;

global economic, legal and regulatory factors unrelated to our performance;

our dependence on federally issued licenses subject to extensive federal regulation;

S-12
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the risk that our FCC broadcasting licenses and/or goodwill could become impaired;

the failure or destruction of the internet, satellite systems and transmitter facilities that we depend upon to
distribute its programming;

disruptions or security breaches of our information technology infrastructure; and

actions by the FCC or legislation affecting the radio industry.
Volatility in the market price of our common stock may prevent investors from being able to sell their Class A
common stock at or above the offering price.

As aresult, you may suffer a loss on your investment. In addition, stock markets have experienced extreme price and
volume fluctuations that have affected and continue to affect the market prices of equity securities of many companies
in our industry. In the past, stockholders have instituted securities class action litigation following periods of market
volatility. If we were involved in securities litigation, we could incur substantial costs and our resources and the
attention of management could be diverted from our business.

There may not be an active market for our Class A common stock, making it difficult for you to sell your stock.

Historically, our stock has not been actively traded, and it may not be actively traded in the future. An illiquid market
for our stock may result in price volatility and poor execution of buy and sell orders for investors. Our stock price and
trading volume have fluctuated widely for a number of reasons, including some reasons that may be unrelated to our
business or results of operations. This market volatility could depress the price of our Class A common stock without
regard to our operating performance. In addition, our operating results may be below expectations of public market
analysts and investors. If this were to occur, the market price of our Class A common stock could decrease, perhaps
significantly.

Our share price may decline due to the large number of shares eligible for future sale.

The market price of our Class A common stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of

Class A common stock in the market after this offering or the perception that such sales could occur. These sales, or
the possibility that these sales may occur, also might make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future
at a time and at a price that we deem appropriate.

Shares of common stock held by our executive officers, directors and certain other holders of our Class A common
stock are subject to lock-up agreements that restrict their ability to transfer shares of our Class A common stock to sell
or transfer any of our Class A common stock or securities convertible into, exchangeable for, exercisable for or
repayable with our Class A common stock, for 90 days after the date of this prospectus supplement without first
obtaining the written consent of the representative for the underwriters, subject to customary exceptions. See

Underwriting No Sales of Similar Securities for more information. After this period, shares of our Class A common
stock held by such executive officers, directors and other holders will become freely transferable, subject to the
restrictions under the Securities Act. Stockholders who are subject to any of the lock-up agreements described above
may be permitted to sell shares prior to the expiration of the applicable lock-up agreement in certain circumstances,
including as the result of the waiver or termination of such lock-up agreement.
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As of July 9, 2018, subject to the restrictions under the Securities Act and under the lock-up agreements described
above, the 16,662,743 shares of our Class A common stock issuable upon conversion of outstanding Class B common
stock are eligible for sale.

In connection with the Merger, we entered into a registration rights agreement pursuant to which we registered
5,422,993 shares of our Class A common stock issued pursuant to the Merger Agreement to the former
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stockholders of Greater Media. Of those registered shares, 4,084,834 remain available for sale and 3,126,147 are being
offered pursuant to this prospectus supplement (3,595,069 if the underwriters exercise in full their option to purchase
additional shares).

While we currently pay a quarterly cash dividend to our stockholders, we may change our dividend policy at any
time and we may not continue to declare cash dividends.

Although we currently pay a quarterly cash dividend to our stockholders, we have no obligation to do so, and our
dividend policy may change at any time. Returns on stockholders investments will primarily depend on the
appreciation, if any, in the price of our Class A common stock. The amount and timing of dividends, if any, are
subject to capital availability and periodic determinations by our board of directors that cash dividends are in the best
interest of our stockholders and are in compliance with all applicable laws and any other contractual agreements
limiting our ability to pay dividends.

Under the credit agreement governing our revolving credit facility and term loan, we are restricted from paying cash
dividends in certain circumstances, and we expect these restrictions to continue in the future. Our ability to pay
dividends may also be restricted by the terms of any future credit agreement or any future debt or preferred equity
securities of ours or of our subsidiaries. Future dividends, including their timing and amount, may be affected by,
among other factors: general economic and business conditions; our financial condition and operating results; our
available cash and current anticipated cash needs; capital requirements; contractual, legal, tax and regulatory
restrictions and implications on the payment of dividends by us to our stockholders; and such other factors as our
board of directors may deem relevant.

Our dividend payments may change from time to time, and we may not continue to declare dividends in any particular
amounts or at all. The reduction in or elimination of our dividend payments could have a negative effect on our stock
price.

If securities analysts do not publish research or reports about our business or if they downgrade our Company or
our sector, the price of our Class A common stock could decline.

The trading market for our Class A common stock depends in part on the research and reports that industry or
financial analysts publish about us or our business. We do not control these analysts. Furthermore, if one or more of
the analysts who do cover us downgrades our Company or our industry, or the stock of any of our competitors, the
price of our Class A common stock could decline. If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of our Company,
we could lose visibility in the market, which in turn could cause the price of our Class A common stock to decline.

If we raise additional capital through the issuance of new Class A common stock at a price lower than the offering
price, you will incur dilution.

If we raise additional capital through the issuance of new Class A common stock at a lower price than the offering
price, you will be subject to dilution, which could cause you to lose all or a portion of your investment. If we are
unable to access the public markets in the future, or if our performance or prospects decrease, we may need to
consummate a private placement or public offering of our Class A common stock at a lower price than the offering
price.

We may issue shares of preferred stock in the future, which could make it difficult for another company to acquire

us or could otherwise adversely affect holders of our Class A common stock, which could depress the price of our
Class A common stock.
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Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation authorizes us to issue one or more series of preferred stock. Our
board of directors has the authority to determine the preferences, limitations and relative rights of the
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shares of preferred stock and to fix the number of shares constituting any series and the designation of such series,
without any further vote or action by our stockholders. Our preferred stock could be issued with voting, liquidation,
dividend and other rights superior to the rights of our Class A common stock. The potential issuance of preferred
stock may delay or prevent a change in control of us, discourage bids for our Class A common stock at a premium to
the market price, and materially and adversely affect the market price and the voting and other rights of the holders of
our Class A common stock.

Our Chairman of the Board controls Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. and members of his immediate family own a
substantial equity interest in Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. Their interests may conflict with yours.

George G. Beasley is generally able to control the vote on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Without the
approval of Mr. Beasley, we will be unable to consummate transactions involving an actual or potential change in
control, including transactions in which you might otherwise receive a premium for your shares over then current
market prices. As of July 9, 2018, shares of our Class A and Class B common stock that Mr. Beasley beneficially
owns represent 60.9% of the total voting power of all classes of our common stock. Members of his immediate family
also own significant amounts of Class B common stock. Mr. Beasley will be able to direct our management and
policies, except with respect to those matters requiring a class vote under the provisions of our amended certificate of
incorporation, third amended and restated bylaws or applicable law.

Historically, we have entered into certain transactions with George G. Beasley, members of his immediate family and
affiliated entities that may conflict with the interests of our stockholders now or in the future. See Item 7 Management s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation Related Party Transactions and Note 15 to

the accompanying financial statements in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Future sales by George G. Beasley or members of his family of our Class A common stock could adversely affect its
market price.

George G. Beasley and members of his family beneficially own the majority of all outstanding shares of Class B
common stock, which is convertible to Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis. The market for our Class A
common stock could change substantially if George G. Beasley and members of his family convert their shares of
Class B common stock to shares of Class A common stock and then sell large amounts of shares of Class A common
stock in the public market.

These sales, or the possibility that these sales may occur, could make it more difficult for us to raise capital by selling
equity or equity-related securities in the future.

Future sales of our Class A common stock by the former stockholders of Greater Media could adversely affect its
market price.

In connection with the Merger, after post-closing adjustments, we issued 4,084,834 shares of Class A common stock
to the former stockholders of Greater Media. As of July 9, 2018, the former stockholders of Greater Media own
approximately 14.9% of the outstanding shares of our common stock and approximately 37.7% of the outstanding
shares of our Class A common stock. After giving effect to this offering, including the sale of 3,126,147 shares being
offered by the selling stockholders pursuant to this prospectus supplement (3,595,069 if the underwriters exercise in
full their option to purchase additional shares), the former stockholders of Greater Media will own approximately
3.5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock and approximately 8.8% of the outstanding shares of our Class A
common stock (or approximately 1.8% of the outstanding shares of our common stock and approximately 4.5% of the
outstanding shares of our Class A common stock if the underwriters exercise in full their option to purchase additional
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These sales, or the possibility that these sales may occur, could make it more difficult for us to raise capital by selling
equity or equity-related securities in the future.
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The difficulties associated with any attempt to gain control of our Company may adversely affect the price of our
Class A common stock.

Due to his large holdings of our common stock, George G. Beasley and members of his family control whether any
change of control of the Company will occur. Moreover, some provisions of our amended certificate of incorporation,
fourth amended and restated bylaws and Delaware law could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control
of us, even if a change of control could be beneficial to you. In addition, the Communications Act of 1934, as
amended, and FCC rules and policies limit the number of stations that one individual or entity can own, directly or by
attribution, in a market. FCC approval for transfers of control of FCC licensees and assignments of FCC licenses are
also required. Because of the limitations and restrictions imposed on us by these provisions and regulations, the
trading price of our Class A common stock may be adversely affected.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares of Class A common stock by the selling stockholders.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

We intend to continue to pay quarterly cash dividends on our Class A and Class B common stock. We paid quarterly
cash dividends in an aggregate annual amount of $4.1 million in 2016 and $5.1 million in 2017. We paid cash
dividends of $1.3 million during the three months ended March 31, 2018, $1.4 million during the three months ended
June 30, 2018 and $1.4 million on July 6, 2018. The declaration and payment of any future dividends will be at the
sole discretion of our board of directors and will depend on many factors, including our financial condition, earnings,
capital requirements, level of indebtedness, statutory and contractual restrictions applying to the payment of dividends
and other considerations that our board of directors deems relevant.

In addition, the credit agreement governing our revolving credit facility and term loan restricts our ability to pay cash
dividends to holders of our common stock. For more details, see the section titled Management s Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2018, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement.
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MARKET PRICE OF OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK

Our Class A common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol BBGI. The following table sets
forth, for each of the quarterly periods indicated, the high and low intraday sales prices for our Class A common stock.

High Low
Year ended December 31, 2015
First Quarter $ 5.54 $4.79
Second Quarter 5.18 4.23
Third Quarter 5.00 3.80
Fourth Quarter 4.47 2.75
Year ended December 31, 2016
First Quarter $ 4.01 $3.05
Second Quarter 5.00 3.64
Third Quarter 6.05 4.19
Fourth Quarter 7.70 4.75
Year ended December 31, 2017
First Quarter $14.25 $5.70
Second Quarter 18.19 8.15
Third Quarter 12.25 8.55
Fourth Quarter 14.40 8.83
Year ending December 31, 2018
First Quarter $14.10 $9.90
Second Quarter 12.32 9.70
Third Quarter (through July 23, 2018) 12.00 8.90

On July 23, 2018, the last reported sale price of shares of our Class A common stock was $8.90 per share. As of

July 9, 2018, there were approximately 119 shareholders of record of our Class A common stock. A substantially
greater number of holders of shares of our common stock are street name or beneficial holders, where shares are held
of record by banks, brokers and other financial institutions.
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SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the current beneficial ownership of our Class A common
stock by each selling stockholder, the number of shares that are being offered by each selling stockholder pursuant to
this prospectus supplement and the beneficial ownership of our Class A common stock by each selling stockholder
after completion of this offering.

The number of shares and percentages of beneficial ownership set forth below are based on 10,844,488 shares of our
Class A common stock issued and outstanding as of July 9, 2018. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance
with Rule 13d-3(d) of the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act ) and includes voting or investment
power with respect to our securities.

The information in the table below with respect to each selling stockholder has been obtained from such selling
stockholder. When we refer to the selling stockholders in this prospectus supplement, we mean the selling
stockholders listed in the table below, as well as their respective pledgees, donees, assignees, transferees and
successors and others who may hold any of such selling stockholder s interest. The business address for each of the
selling stockholders is c/o Carter Ledyard & Milburn LLP, Two Wall Street, New York, NY 10005.

Assuming No Exercise of

the Assuming Full Exercise of the
Underwriters Option to Purtlmaberwriters Option to Purchase
Additional Shares Additional Shares
Shares
Beneficially
Shares Owned
Shares Beneficially Shares to Beneficially Shares to After
Owned Prior to the be Sold in Owned After the be Sold in the
Offering this Offering this Offering
Name of Selling Stockholders Number Percent Offering Number Percent  Offering NumbRercent
Cristina Bordes 2009 Gift Trust(» 489,762  4.5% 489,762 0 489,762 0
Peter A. Bordes Marital Trust® 171,361 1.6% 171,361 0 171,361 0O
Lee Bordes 2015 GRAT #7?) 70,851 . 70,851 0 70,851 O
Lee Bordes 2017 GRAT #1® 966,954  89% 732,493 234,461 2.2% 966,954 0
Lee Bordes 2017 GRAT #2©) 966,954  89% 732,493 234,461 2.2% 966,954 0
Stephanie Bordes 2009 Gift Trust©® 439,425  4.1% 439,425 0 439,425 0
Stephen Bordes 2009 Gift Trust(? 489,762  4.5% 489,762 0 489,762 0

*  Denotes less than 1.0% of beneficial ownership.

(1) Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and have the shared power to vote and dispose of the
shares of Class A common stock held by the Cristina Bordes 2009 Gift Trust. Each trustee may be deemed to
share beneficial ownership of the shares shown as beneficially owned by the trust, and such persons expressly
disclaim such beneficial ownership.

(2) Peter A. Bordes, Jr., Cristina Bordes, Stephanie L. Bordes, Stephen M. Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the
trustees and have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock held by the Peter
A. Bordes Martial Trust. Each trustee may be deemed to share beneficial ownership of the shares shown as
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beneficially owned by the trust, and such persons expressly disclaim such beneficial ownership.
(3) Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and have the shared power to vote and dispose of the
shares of Class A common stock held by the Lee Bordes 2015 GRAT #7. Each trustee may be deemed to share

beneficial ownership of the shares shown as beneficially owned by the trust, and such persons expressly disclaim
such beneficial ownership.
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(4) Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and have the shared power to vote and dispose of the
shares of Class A common stock held by the Lee Bordes 2017 GRAT #1. Each trustee may be deemed to share
beneficial ownership of the shares shown as beneficially owned by the trust, and such persons expressly disclaim
such beneficial ownership.

(5) Ciristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and have the shared power to vote and dispose of the
shares of Class A common stock held by the Lee Bordes 2017 GRAT #2. Each trustee may be deemed to share
beneficial ownership of the shares shown as beneficially owned by the trust, and such persons expressly disclaim
such beneficial ownership.

(6) Stephanie L. Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and have the shared power to vote and dispose of the
shares of Class A common stock held by the Stephanie Bordes 2009 Gift Trust. Each trustee may be deemed to
share beneficial ownership of the shares shown as beneficially owned by the trust, and such persons expressly
disclaim such beneficial ownership.

(7) Stephen M. Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and have the shared power to vote and dispose of the
shares of Class A common stock held by the Stephen Bordes 2009 Gift Trust. Each trustee may be deemed to
share beneficial ownership of the shares shown as beneficially owned by the trust, and such persons expressly
disclaim such beneficial ownership.
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MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES TO NON-U.S. HOLDERS

The following discussion is a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences to Non-U.S. Holders (as
defined below) of the purchase, ownership and disposition of our Class A common stock acquired pursuant to this
offering, but does not purport to be a complete analysis of all potential tax effects. The effects of other U.S. federal tax
laws, such as estate and gift tax laws, and any applicable state, local or non-U.S. tax laws are not discussed. This
discussion is based on the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code ), Treasury Regulations
promulgated thereunder, judicial decisions, and published rulings and administrative pronouncements of the U.S.
Internal Revenue Service (the IRS ), in each case in effect as of the date hereof. These authorities may change or be
subject to differing interpretations. Any such change or differing interpretation may be applied retroactively in a
manner that could adversely affect a Non-U.S. Holder of our Class A common stock. We have not sought and will not
seek any rulings from the IRS regarding the matters discussed below. There can be no assurance that the IRS or a
court will not take a contrary position to that discussed below regarding the tax consequences of the purchase,
ownership and disposition of our Class A common stock.

This discussion is limited to Non-U.S. Holders that hold our Class A common stock as a capital asset within the
meaning of Section 1221 of the Code (generally, property held for investment). This discussion does not address all
U.S. federal income tax consequences relevant to a Non-U.S. Holder s particular circumstances, including the impact
of the Medicare contribution tax on net investment income. In addition, it does not address consequences relevant to
Non-U.S. Holders subject to special rules, including, without limitation:

U.S. expatriates and former citizens or long-term residents of the United States;

persons subject to the alternative minimum tax;

persons holding our Class A common stock as part of a hedge, straddle or other risk reduction strategy or as
part of a conversion transaction or other integrated investment;

banks, insurance companies, and other financial institutions;

real estate investment trusts or regulated investment companies;

brokers, dealers or traders in securities;

controlled foreign corporations,  passive foreign investment companies, and corporations that accumulate
earnings to avoid U.S. federal income tax;

partnerships or other entities or arrangements treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes
(and investors therein);
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tax-exempt organizations or governmental organizations;

persons deemed to sell our Class A common stock under the constructive sale provisions of the Code;

persons who hold or receive our Class A common stock pursuant to the exercise of any employee stock
option or otherwise as compensation;

tax-qualified retirement plans; and

qualified foreign pension funds as defined in Section 897(1)(2) of the Code and entities all of the interests of

which are held by qualified foreign pension funds.
If an entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes holds our Class A common
stock, the tax treatment of such entity or arrangement and an owner in such entity or arrangement will depend on the
status of the owner, the activities of such entity or arrangement and certain determinations made at the owner level.
Accordingly, entities or arrangements treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes holding our Class A
common stock and the owners in such entities or arrangements should consult their own tax advisors regarding the
U.S. federal income tax consequences to them of purchasing, owning and disposing of our Class A common stock.
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THIS DISCUSSION IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT TAX ADVICE.
INVESTORS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS WITH RESPECT TO THE
APPLICATION OF THE U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX LAWS TO THEIR PARTICULAR SITUATIONS
AS WELL AS ANY TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF
OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK ARISING UNDER THE U.S. FEDERAL ESTATE OR GIFT TAX LAWS
OR UNDER THE LAWS OF ANY STATE, LOCAL OR NON-U.S. TAXING JURISDICTION OR UNDER
ANY APPLICABLE INCOME TAX TREATY.

Definition of a Non-U.S. Holder

For purposes of this discussion, a Non-U.S. Holder is any beneficial owner of our Class A common stock that is
neither a U.S. person nor an entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. A U.S. person is any
person that, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, is or is treated as any of the following:

an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States;

a corporation created or organized under the laws of the United States, any state thereof, or the District of
Columbia;

an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of its source; or

a trust that (1) is subject to the primary supervision of a U.S. court and the control of one or more United
States persons (within the meaning of Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code), or (2) has a valid election in effect
to be treated as a United States person for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Distributions

As described in the section entitled Dividend Policy, we intend to continue to pay quarterly cash dividends on our
Class A and Class B common stock. If we make distributions of cash or property on our Class A common stock, such
distributions will constitute dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent paid from our current or
accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. Amounts not treated as
dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes will constitute a return of capital and first be applied against and
reduce a Non-U.S. Holder s adjusted tax basis in its Class A common stock, but not below zero. Any excess will be
treated as capital gain and will be treated as described below under  Sale or Other Taxable Disposition.

Subject to the discussion below on effectively connected income, dividends paid to a Non-U.S. Holder of our Class A
common stock will be subject to U.S. federal withholding tax at a rate of 30% of the gross amount of the dividends (or
such lower rate specified by an applicable income tax treaty, provided the Non-U.S. Holder furnishes to the applicable
withholding agent a valid IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E (or other applicable documentation) certifying
qualification for the lower treaty rate). A Non-U.S. Holder that does not timely furnish the required documentation,
but that qualifies for a reduced treaty rate, may obtain a refund of any excess amounts withheld by timely filing an
appropriate claim for refund with the IRS. Non-U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding their
entitlement to benefits under any applicable income tax treaty.

Table of Contents 52



Edgar Filing: YPF SOCIEDAD ANONIMA - Form 6-K

If dividends paid to a Non-U.S. Holder are effectively connected with the Non-U.S. Holder s conduct of a trade or
business within the United States (and, if required by an applicable income tax treaty, the Non-U.S. Holder maintains
a permanent establishment in the United States to which such dividends are attributable), the Non-U.S. Holder will be
exempt from the U.S. federal withholding tax described above. To claim the exemption, the Non-U.S. Holder must
furnish to the applicable withholding agent a valid IRS Form W-8ECI, certifying that the dividends are effectively
connected with the Non-U.S. Holder s conduct of a trade or business within the United States.

Any such effectively connected dividends will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net income basis at regular
graduated U.S. federal income tax rates. A Non-U.S. Holder that is or is treated as a corporation for U.S.
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federal income tax purposes also may be subject to a branch profits tax at a rate of 30% (or such lower rate specified
by an applicable income tax treaty) on such effectively connected dividends, as adjusted for certain items. Non-U.S.
Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding any applicable tax treaties that may provide for different
rules.

Sale or Other Taxable Disposition

A Non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on any gain realized upon the sale or other taxable
disposition of our Class A common stock unless:

the gain is effectively connected with the Non-U.S. Holder s conduct of a trade or business within the United
States (and, if required by an applicable income tax treaty, the Non-U.S. Holder maintains a permanent
establishment in the United States to which such gain is attributable);

the Non-U.S. Holder is a nonresident alien individual present in the United States for 183 days or more
during the taxable year of the disposition and certain other requirements are met; or

our Class A common stock constitutes a U.S. real property interest ( USRPI ) by reason of our status as a U.S.
real property holding corporation ( USRPHC ) for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
Gain described in the first bullet point above generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net income basis
at regular graduated U.S. federal income tax rates. A Non-U.S. Holder that is a corporation also may be subject to a
branch profits tax at a rate of 30% (or such lower rate specified by an applicable income tax treaty) on such effectively
connected gain, as adjusted for certain items.

A Non-U.S. Holder described in the second bullet point above will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at a rate of
30% (or such lower rate specified by an applicable income tax treaty) on gain derived from the sale or other taxable
disposition, which may be offset by U.S. source capital losses of the Non-U.S. Holder (even though the individual is
not considered a resident of the United States), provided the Non-U.S. Holder has timely filed U.S. federal income tax
returns with respect to such losses.

With respect to the third bullet point above, we believe we currently are not, and do not anticipate becoming, a
USRPHC. Because the determination of whether we are a USRPHC depends, however, on the fair market value of our
USRPISs relative to the fair market value of our non-U.S. real property interests and our other business assets, there can
be no assurance we currently are not a USRPHC or will not become one in the future. Even if we are or were to
become a USRPHC, gain arising from the sale or other taxable disposition by a Non-U.S. Holder of our Class A
common stock will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax if our Class A common stock is regularly traded, as
defined by applicable Treasury Regulations, on an established securities market, and such Non-U.S. Holder owned,
actually or constructively, 5% or less of our Class A common stock throughout the shorter of the five-year period
ending on the date of the sale or other taxable disposition or the Non-U.S. Holder s holding period.

Non-U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding potentially applicable income tax treaties that may
provide for different rules.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding
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Payments of dividends on our Class A common stock will not be subject to backup withholding, provided the
applicable withholding agent does not have actual knowledge or reason to know the holder is a United States person
and the holder either certifies its non-U.S. status, such as by furnishing a valid IRS Form W-8BEN, W-8BEN-E or
W-8ECI, or otherwise establishes an exemption. However, information returns are required to be filed with the IRS in
connection with any dividends on our Class A common stock paid to the Non-U.S. Holder, regardless of whether any
tax was actually withheld. In addition, proceeds of the sale or other taxable disposition
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of our Class A common stock within the United States or conducted through certain U.S.-related brokers generally
will not be subject to backup withholding or information reporting, if the applicable withholding agent receives the
certification described above and does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that such holder is a United
States person, or the holder otherwise establishes an exemption. Proceeds of a disposition of our Class A common
stock conducted through a non-U.S. office of a non-U.S. broker generally will not be subject to backup withholding or
information reporting.

Copies of information returns that are filed with the IRS may also be made available under the provisions of an
applicable treaty or agreement to the tax authorities of the country in which the Non-U.S. Holder resides or is
established.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules may be
allowed as a refund or a credit against a Non-U.S. Holder s U.S. federal income tax liability, provided the required
information is timely furnished to the IRS.

Additional Withholding Tax on Payments Made to Foreign Accounts

Withholding taxes may be imposed under Sections 1471 to 1474 of the Code (such Sections commonly referred to as
the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act, or FATCA ) on certain types of payments made to non-U.S. financial
institutions and certain other non-U.S. entities. Specifically, a 30% withholding tax may be imposed on dividends on,
or gross proceeds from the sale or other disposition of, our Class A common stock paid to a foreign financial
institution or a non-financial foreign entity (each as defined in the Code), unless (1) the foreign financial institution
undertakes certain diligence and reporting obligations, (2) the non-financial foreign entity either certifies it does not
have any substantial United States owners (as defined in the Code) or furnishes identifying information regarding each
substantial United States owner, or (3) the foreign financial institution or non-financial foreign entity otherwise
qualifies for an exemption from these rules. If the payee is a foreign financial institution and is subject to the diligence
and reporting requirements in (1) above, it must enter into an agreement with the U.S. Department of the Treasury
requiring, among other things, that it undertake to identify accounts held by certain specified United States persons or
United States-owned foreign entities (each as defined in the Code), annually report certain information about such
accounts, and withhold 30% on certain payments to non-compliant foreign financial institutions and certain other
account holders. Foreign financial institutions located in jurisdictions that have an intergovernmental agreement with
the United States governing FATCA may be subject to different rules.

Under the applicable Treasury Regulations and administrative guidance, withholding under FATCA generally applies
to payments of dividends on our Class A common stock, and will apply to payments of gross proceeds from the sale

or other disposition of such stock on or after January 1, 2019.

Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors regarding the potential application of withholding under
FATCA to their investment in our Class A common stock.
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UNDERWRITING

Guggenheim Securities, LL.C is acting as representative of each of the underwriters named below. Subject to the terms
and conditions set forth in the underwriting agreement among us, the selling stockholders and the underwriters, the
selling stockholders have agreed to sell to the underwriters, and each of the underwriters has agreed, severally and not
jointly, to purchase from the selling stockholders, the number of shares of Class A common stock set forth opposite its
name below.

Number
of
Underwriter Shares
Guggenheim Securities, LL.C 1,938,211
Stephens Inc. 1,031,629
Noble Capital Markets Inc. 156,307
Total 3,126,147

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the underwriting agreement, the underwriters have agreed, severally
and not jointly, to purchase all of the shares sold under the underwriting agreement if any of these shares are
purchased. If an underwriter defaults, the underwriting agreement provides that the purchase commitments of the
non-defaulting underwriters may be increased or the underwriting agreement may be terminated.

We and the selling stockholders have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including
liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make in respect
of those liabilities.

The underwriters are offering the shares subject to their acceptance of the shares of Class A common stock from the
selling stockholders and subject to prior sale. The underwriters reserve the right to withdraw, cancel or modify offers
to the public and to reject orders in whole or in part.

Commissions and Discounts; Expenses

The underwriters have advised us and the selling stockholders that they propose initially to offer the shares to the
public at the public offering price set forth on the cover of this prospectus supplement and to dealers at that price less
a concession not in excess of $0.27 per share. After the initial offering, the public offering price, concession or any
other term of the offering may be changed.

The following table shows the public offering price, underwriting discounts and commissions and proceeds before
expenses to the selling stockholders. The information assumes either no exercise or full exercise by the underwriters
of their option to purchase additional shares of our Class A common stock from the selling stockholders, as
applicable.

Per Total
Selling Stockholders Share = Without Option With Option
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$ 7.50
$0.45
$7.05

$23,446,102.50
$ 1,406,766.15
$22,039,336.35

$26,963,017.50
$ 1,617,781.05
$25,345,236.45
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We estimate expenses payable by us in connection with this offering, other than the underwriting discounts and
commissions referred to above, will be approximately $500,000, which includes certain expenses incurred by the
underwriters and the selling stockholders in connection with this offering that will be reimbursed by us. We have
agreed to reimburse the underwriters for certain expenses incurred by them in connection with this offering, which are
currently estimated to be $20,000. We have also agreed, pursuant to the registration rights agreement with the selling
stockholders, to reimburse the selling stockholders for certain of their expenses in connection with this offering.

Option to Purchase Additional Shares

The selling stockholders have granted the underwriters an option to purchase up to an additional 468,922 shares of
Class A common stock at the public offering price, less the underwriting discounts and commissions, within 30 days
from the date of this prospectus supplement. If the underwriters exercise this option, each underwriter will be
obligated, subject to conditions contained in the underwriting agreement, to purchase a number of additional shares
proportionate to that underwriter s initial amount reflected in the above table.

No Sales of Similar Securities

In connection with this offering, we, each selling stockholder, certain other of our stockholders, and our directors and
officers have agreed with the underwriters that, subject to certain exceptions, without the prior written consent of
Guggenheim Securities, LLC on behalf of the underwriters, we and they will not, for the period ending 90 days after
the date of this prospectus supplement (the restricted period ) offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or
contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, lend, or
otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of our Class A common stock or any other securities
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Class A common stock; enter into any swap or other arrangement
that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of our Class A common
stock, whether any such transaction is to be settled by delivery of Class A common stock or such other securities, in
cash or otherwise. The underwriters may, in their sole discretion, permit the sale of these shares of Class A common
stock or any other securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Class A common stock during the
restricted period in whole or in part and at any time, with or without notice.

With respect to us, the restrictions described above do not apply to:

(a) the exercise of an option or warrant, the vesting of restricted stock units or the conversion or exchange of a security
outstanding on the date hereof;

(b) pursuant to the stock-based compensation plans of Beasley and our subsidiaries;

(c) the establishment of a trading plan pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act, provided that such plan does
not provide for the transfer of shares of our Class A common stock during the 90-day restricted period and the
establishment of such plan does not require or otherwise result in any public filing or other public announcement of
such plan during the 90-day restricted period;

(d) shares of our Class A common stock or other securities issued in connection with a transaction with a third party
that includes a bona fide commercial relationship (including joint ventures, marketing or distribution arrangements,
collaboration agreements or intellectual property license agreements) or any acquisition of assets of not less than a
majority or controlling portion of the equity of another entity, provided that (x) the aggregate number of shares of our
Class A common stock that the we may sell or issue or agree to sell or issue shall not exceed 5% of the total number
of shares of our Class A common stock issued and outstanding immediately following the completion of this offering
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(e) the filing of any registration statement on Form S-8 or a successor form thereto relating to the shares of our
Class A common stock granted pursuant to or reserved for issuance under the stock-based compensation plans of
Beasley and our subsidiaries referred to in clause (c).

Further, the foregoing lock-up provisions will not apply to the selling stockholders and our executive officers and
directors with respect to:

(a) transfers made to the underwriters in connection with this offering;

(b) transfers made (i) as a bona fide gift or gifts, (ii) by will, other testamentary document or intestate succession,

(ii1) to family members, (iv) to a trust for the direct or indirect benefit of such person or one or more family members,
(v) pursuant to a domestic order, divorce settlement, divorce decree, separation agreement or pursuant to an order of a
court of competent jurisdiction enforcing such agreement, (vi) to a charitable trust, or (vii) to a legal entity wholly
owned by such person and/or one of more family members;

(c) the surrender or forfeiture of shares of our Class A common stock to satisfy tax withholding obligations upon
exercise or vesting of stock options or equity awards, where any Class A common stock received by such person upon
any such exercise or vesting will be subject to the terms of the lock-up provisions;

(d) distributions of our Class A common stock to limited partners, members or stockholders or the beneficiary of such
trust or to a revocable trust established by the beneficiary,

(e) transactions relating to our Class A common stock acquired in open market transactions after the closing of this
offering, and

(f) the transfer of shares of our Class A common stock or any security convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable
for our Class A common stock pursuant to a bona fide third party tender offer, merger, consolidation or other similar
transaction made to all holders of the Class A common stock involving a change of control of the Company that has
been approved by our board of directors; provided that if such a transaction is not completed, the relevant Class A
common stock shall remain subject to the terms of the lock-up provisions.

It is a condition to any transfer or distribution pursuant to clauses (b), (c), (d) or (e) that no public disclosure or
announcement be required or made in connection with such transfer or distribution. It is a further condition to any
transfer or distribution to clauses (b) or (d) that (x) any such transfer shall not involve a disposition for value and

(y) each resulting transferee or donee enter into a similar lock-up agreement for remainder of the restricted period. In
addition, the lock-up provision will not apply to the establishment of a 10b5-1 trading plan, provided that no transfers
occur during the restricted period and no public filing or announcement is required or made in connection with such
plan during the restricted period.

NASDAQ Global Market Listing

Our Class A common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol BBGI.

Price Stabilization and Short Positions

Until the distribution of the shares is completed, SEC rules may limit underwriters and selling group members from
bidding for and purchasing our Class A common stock. However, the representative may engage in transactions that

stabilize the price of the Class A common stock, such as bids or purchases to peg, fix or maintain that price.
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In connection with the offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell our Class A common stock in the open
market. These transactions may include short sales, purchases on the open market to cover positions created by short
sales and stabilizing transactions. Short sales involve the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of shares than
they are required to purchase in the offering. Covered short sales are sales made in an amount not greater than the
underwriters option described above. The underwriters may close out any covered short position by either exercising
their option or purchasing shares in the open market. In determining the source of shares to close out the covered short
position, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the open
market as compared to the price at which they may purchase shares through the option granted to them. Naked short
sales are sales in excess of such option. The underwriters must close out any naked short position by purchasing
shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that
there may be downward pressure on the price of our Class A common stock in the open market after pricing that could
adversely affect investors who purchase in the offering. Stabilizing transactions consist of various bids for or
purchases of shares of Class A common stock made by the underwriters in the open market prior to the closing of the
offering.

Similar to other purchase transactions, the underwriters purchases to cover the syndicate short sales may have the
effect of raising or maintaining the market price of our Class A common stock or preventing or retarding a decline in
the market price of our Class A common stock. As a result, the price of our Class A common stock may be higher than
the price that might otherwise exist in the open market. The underwriters may conduct these transactions on The
NASDAQ Global Market, in the over-the-counter market or otherwise.

Neither we nor any of the underwriters make any representation or prediction as to the direction or magnitude of any
effect that the transactions described above may have on the price of our Class A common stock. In addition, neither
we nor any of the underwriters make any representation that the representatives will engage in these transactions or
that these transactions, once commenced, will not be discontinued without notice.

Passive Market Making

Any underwriters who are qualified market makers on The NASDAQ Global Market may engage in passive market
making transactions in the securities on The NASDAQ Global Market in accordance with Rule 103 of Regulation M,
during the business day prior to the pricing of the offering, before the commencement of offers or sales of the
securities. Passive market makers must comply with applicable volume and price limitations and must be identified as
passive market makers. In general, a passive market maker must display its bid at a price not in excess of the highest
independent bid for such security; if all independent bids are lowered below the passive market maker s bid, however,
the passive market maker s bid must then be lowered when certain purchase limits are exceeded. Passive market
making may stabilize the market price of the securities at a level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open
market and, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

Electronic Distribution

In connection with the offering, certain of the underwriters or securities dealers may distribute prospectuses by
electronic means, such as e-mail.

Other Relationships
The underwriters and certain of their affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities,
which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory, investment

management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage activities. Some of the
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In addition, in the ordinary course of their business activities, the underwriters and their affiliates may make or hold a
broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial
instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers. Such investments
and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of ours or our affiliates. The underwriters and their
affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views in respect
of such securities or financial instruments and may hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short
positions in such securities and instruments.

Selling Restrictions
Notice to Prospective Investors in the European Economic Area

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive
(each, a Relevant Member State ), with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is
implemented in that Relevant Member State, no offer of shares may be made to the public in that Relevant Member
State other than:

A. to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;

B. to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus
Directive), as permitted under the Prospectus Directive, subject to obtaining the prior consent of the
representative; or

C. in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive,
provided that no such offer of shares shall require the Company or the representative to publish a prospectus pursuant
to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.

Each person in a Relevant Member State who initially acquires any shares or to whom any offer is made will be
deemed to have represented, acknowledged and agreed that itis a qualified investor within the meaning of the law in
that Relevant Member State implementing Article 2(1)(e) of the Prospectus Directive. In the case of any shares being
offered to a financial intermediary as that term is used in Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive, each such financial
intermediary will be deemed to have represented, acknowledged and agreed that the shares acquired by it in the offer
have not been acquired on a non-discretionary basis on behalf of, nor have they been acquired with a view to their

offer or resale to, persons in circumstances which may give rise to an offer of any shares to the public other than their
offer or resale in a Relevant Member State to qualified investors as so defined or in circumstances in which the prior
consent of the representative has been obtained to each such proposed offer or resale.

We, the representative and each of our and the representative s and their affiliates will rely upon the truth and accuracy
of the foregoing representations, acknowledgements and agreements.

This prospectus supplement has been prepared on the basis that any offer of shares in any Relevant Member State will
be made pursuant to an exemption under the Prospectus Directive from the requirement to publish a prospectus for
offers of shares. Accordingly, any person making or intending to make an offer in that Relevant Member State of
shares which are the subject of the offering contemplated in this prospectus supplement may only do so in
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circumstances in which no obligation arises for the company or any of the underwriters to publish a prospectus
pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive in relation to such offer. Neither the company nor the underwriters
have authorized, nor do they authorize, the making of any offer of shares in circumstances in which an obligation
arises for the company or the underwriters to publish a prospectus for such offer.

For the purpose of the above provisions, the expression an offer to the public in relation to any shares in any Relevant
Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information
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on the terms of the offer and the shares to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the
shares, as the same may be varied in the Relevant Member State by any measure implementing the Prospectus
Directive in the Relevant Member State and the expression Prospectus Directive means Directive 2003/71/EC
(including the 2010 PD Amending Directive, to the extent implemented in the Relevant Member States) and includes
any relevant implementing measure in the Relevant Member State and the expression 2010 PD Amending Directive
means Directive 2010/73/EU.

MiIFID II Product Governance

Any person offering, selling or recommending the shares (a distributor ) should take into consideration the
manufacturers target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiFID II is responsible for undertaking its
own target market assessment in respect of the shares (by either adopting or refining the manufacturers target market
assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the United Kingdom

In addition, in the United Kingdom, this document is being distributed only to, and is directed only at, and any offer
subsequently made may only be directed at persons who are qualified investors (as defined in the Prospectus
Directive) (i) who have professional experience in matters relating to investments falling within Article 19(5) of the
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005, as amended (the Order ) and/or (ii) who
are high net worth companies (or persons to whom it may otherwise be lawfully communicated) falling within Article
49(2)(a) to (d) of the Order (all such persons together being referred to as relevant persons ) or otherwise in
circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public of the shares in the United Kingdom
within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.

Any person in the United Kingdom that is not a relevant person should not act or rely on the information included in
this document or use it as basis for taking any action. In the United Kingdom, any investment or investment activity
that this document relates to may be made or taken exclusively by relevant persons.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Canada

The shares may be sold only to purchasers purchasing, or deemed to be purchasing, as principal that are accredited
investors, as defined in National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus Exemptions or subsection 73.3(1) of the Securities Act
(Ontario), and are permitted clients, as defined in National Instrument 31-103 Registration Requirements, Exemptions
and Ongoing Registrant Obligations. Any resale of the shares must be made in accordance with an exemption from, or
in a transaction not subject to, the prospectus requirements of applicable securities laws.

Securities legislation in certain provinces or territories of Canada may provide a purchaser with remedies for
rescission or damages if this prospectus supplement (including any amendment thereto) contains a misrepresentation,
provided that the remedies for rescission or damages are exercised by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed
by the securities legislation of the purchaser s province or territory. The purchaser should refer to any applicable
provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser s province or territory for particulars of these rights or consult
with a legal advisor.

Pursuant to section 3A.3 of National Instrument 33-105 Underwriting Conflicts (NI 33-105), the underwriters are not

required to comply with the disclosure requirements of NI 33-105 regarding underwriter conflicts of interest in
connection with this offering.
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the shares of Class A common stock offered by this prospectus supplement will be passed upon for us
by Latham & Watkins LLLP, Washington, District of Columbia. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the
selling stockholders by Debevoise & Plimpton LLP, New York, New York. Certain legal matters will be passed upon
for the underwriters by Proskauer Rose LLP, New York, New York.

EXPERTS
The consolidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for each of the two
years in the period ended December 31, 2017 have been incorporated in this prospectus supplement by reference to
the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 in reliance on the report,

including reference to the schedule, included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K, of Crowe LLP, independent
registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION; INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE
Available Information

We file reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC under the Exchange Act. Information filed with
the SEC by us can be inspected and copied at the Public Reference Room maintained by the SEC at 100 F Street,
N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may also obtain copies of this information by mail from the Public Reference
Room of the SEC at prescribed rates. Further information on the operation of the SEC s Public Reference Room in
Washington, D.C. can be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains a web site that
contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information about issuers, such as us, who file
electronically with the SEC. The address of that website is www.sec.gov.

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus are part of registration statement that we filed with the
SEC and do not contain all of the information in the registration statement. The full registration statement may be
obtained from the SEC or us, as provided below. Copies of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation

and our Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws, which set forth the terms of our Class A common stock, are filed as
exhibits to the registration statements or documents incorporated by reference in the registration statement. Statements
in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus about these documents are summaries and each
statement is qualified in all respects by reference to the document to which it refers. You should refer to the actual
documents for a more complete description of the relevant matters. You may inspect a copy of the registration
statement at the SEC s Public Reference Room in Washington, D.C., or through the SEC s website, as provided above.

Incorporation by Reference

The SEC s rules allow us to incorporate by reference information into this prospectus, which means that we can
disclose important information to you by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. The
information incorporated by reference is deemed to be part of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying
prospectus, and subsequent information that we file with the SEC will automatically update and supersede that
information. Any statement contained in a previously filed document incorporated by reference will be deemed to be
modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus to the extent that
a statement contained in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus or a subsequently filed document
incorporated by reference modifies or replaces that statement.

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus incorporate by reference the documents set forth below
that have previously been filed with the SEC:

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, filed with the SEC on
February 20, 2018.

Our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed with the SEC on April 16, 2018.

Our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2018, filed with the SEC on
May 8, 2018.
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Our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 25, 2018 and June 1, 2018.

The description of our Class A common stock contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A, filed
with the SEC on January 31, 2000, and any amendment or report filed with the SEC for the purpose of
updating the description.
All reports and other documents we file pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act subsequent
to the date of this prospectus supplement and prior to the termination of this offering, but excluding any information
furnished to, rather than filed with, the SEC, will also be incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement
and deemed to be part of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus from the date of the filing of
such reports and documents.
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You may request a free copy of any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the
accompanying prospectus by writing or telephoning us at the following address:

Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.
3033 Riviera Drive
Suite 200
Naples, Florida 34103
(239) 263-5000

Exhibits to the filings will not be sent, however, unless those exhibits have specifically been incorporated by reference
in this prospectus or any accompanying prospectus supplement.
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PROSPECTUS

5,422,993 Shares

Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.

Class A Common Stock

This prospectus relates to the resale of up to 5,422,993 shares of Class A common stock of Beasley Broadcast Group,
Inc., by the selling stockholders identified in this prospectus. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of the
shares. We have agreed to bear all of the expenses incurred in connection with the registration of these shares. The
selling stockholders identified in this prospectus will pay underwriting discounts and commissions and any transfer
taxes incurred for the sale of shares of our Class A common stock.

Our Class A common stock is listed on The NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol BBGI . On December 29,

2016, the closing sale price of our Class A common stock on The NASDAQ Global Market was $5.85 per share. You
are urged to obtain current market quotations for our Class A common stock.

Investing in our Class A common stock involves a high degree of risk. See _Risk Factors beginning on page 6.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or
disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation
to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Prospectus dated December 30, 2016.
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

(the SEC )usinga shelf registration process, to permit the holders named in the section entitled Selling Stockholders tc
resell shares of our Class A common stock in a registered offering, as described under Plan of Distribution. Under this
shelf registration process, the selling stockholders from time to time may offer and sell shares of our common stock in
one or more offerings or resales. This prospectus provides you with a general description of the shares of common

stock the selling stockholders may offer. Under the shelf process, in certain circumstances, we may provide a

prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of a particular offering by the selling
stockholders. We may also authorize one or more free writing prospectuses to be provided to you that may contain
material information relating to these offerings. Any prospectus supplement may also add, update or change

information contained in this prospectus with respect to that offering. If there is any inconsistency between the
information in this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement, you should rely on the prospectus

supplement. Before purchasing any securities, you should carefully read both this prospectus and any applicable
prospectus supplement, together with the additional information described under the heading Where You Can Find
More Information; Incorporation by Reference.

Neither we, nor the selling stockholders, have authorized anyone to provide you with any information or to make any
representations other than those contained in this prospectus, any applicable prospectus supplement or any free writing
prospectuses prepared by or on behalf of us or to which we have referred you. We and the selling stockholders take no
responsibility for, and can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give
you. We and the selling stockholders will not make an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer
or sale is not permitted. You should not assume that the information incorporated by reference or provided in this
prospectus or any applicable prospectus supplement or any free writing prospectus prepared by us is accurate as of any
date other than the date on the front cover of those documents. Our business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects may have changed since those dates.

When we refer to Beasley, we, our, us andthe Company in this prospectus, we mean Beasley Broadcast Group,
and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise specified.
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION; INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE
Available Information

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC under the

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which we refer to as the Exchange Act in this prospectus, relating to our business,
financial condition and other matters. Such reports and other information may be inspected and copied at the SEC s
Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain more

information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Copies of such
information may be obtained by mail, upon payment of the SEC s customary charges, by writing to the SEC s principal
office at 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. The SEC also maintains an internet website located

at www.sec.gov, which contains reports, proxy statements and other information that we file with the SEC

electronically via the EDGAR system.

Our principal executive offices are located at 3033 Riviera Drive, Suite 200, Naples, FL 34103 and our telephone
number is (239) 263-5000. Our Internet address is www.bbgi.com. The information on our Internet website is not
incorporated by reference in this prospectus, and you should not consider it to be a part of this document. Our website
address is included as an inactive textual reference only.

This prospectus and any prospectus supplement are part of a registration statement that we filed with the SEC and do
not contain all of the information in the registration statement. The full registration statement may be obtained from
the SEC or us, as provided below. Other documents establishing the terms of the offered securities are or may be filed
as exhibits to the registration statement. Statements in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement about these
documents are summaries and each statement is qualified in all respects by reference to the document to which it
refers. You should refer to the actual documents for a more complete description of the relevant matters. You may
inspect a copy of the registration statement at the SEC s Public Reference Room in Washington, D.C., or through the
SEC s website, as provided above.

Incorporation by Reference

The SEC s rules allow us to incorporate by reference information into this prospectus, which means that we can
disclose important information to you by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. The
information incorporated by reference is deemed to be part of this prospectus, and subsequent information that we file
with the SEC will automatically update and supersede that information. Any statement contained in a previously filed
document incorporated by reference will be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus to
the extent that a statement contained in this prospectus modifies or replaces that statement.

We incorporate by reference our documents listed below and any future filings made by us with the SEC under
Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act between the date of this prospectus and the termination of the
offering of the securities described in this prospectus. We are not, however, incorporating by reference any documents
or portions thereof, whether specifically listed below or filed in the future, that are not deemed filed with the SEC,
including our Compensation Committee report and performance graph or any information furnished pursuant to Items
2.02 or 7.01 of Form 8-K or related exhibits furnished pursuant to Item 9.01 of Form 8-K.

This prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement incorporate by reference the documents set forth below
that have previously been filed with the SEC:
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Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, filed with the SEC on
February 26, 2016.

Our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2016, June 30, 2016, and
September 30, 2016, filed with the SEC on May 11, 2016, August 5, 2016 and November 9, 2016,
respectively.
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Our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed with the SEC on April 15, 2016.

Our Definitive Information Statement on Schedule 14C, filed with the SEC on September 23, 2016.

Our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 18, 2016, May 27, 2016, July 20, 2016
(excluding Item 7.01 information and related exhibits), November 2, 2016 (excluding Item 2.02 information
and related exhibit) and November 4, 2016.

The description of our Class A common stock contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A, filed
with the SEC on January 31, 2000, and any amendment or report filed with the SEC for the purpose of
updating the description.
All reports and other documents we subsequently file pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange
Act prior to the termination of this offering, including all such documents we may file with the SEC after the date of
the initial registration statement and prior to the effectiveness of the registration statement, but excluding any
information furnished to, rather than filed with, the SEC, will also be incorporated by reference into this prospectus
and deemed to be part of this prospectus from the date of the filing of such reports and documents.

You may request a free copy of any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus (other than exhibits,
unless they are specifically incorporated by reference in the documents) by writing or telephoning us at the following
address:
Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.
3033 Riviera Drive
Suite 200
Naples, Florida 34103

(239) 263-5000

Exhibits to the filings will not be sent, however, unless those exhibits have specifically been incorporated by reference
in this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement.
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ABOUT THE COMPANY

We are a radio broadcasting company whose primary business is operating radio stations throughout the United States.
Inclusive of announced divestitures, we own and operate 69 radio stations in the following radio markets: Atlanta,
GA, Augusta, GA, Boston, MA, Charlotte, NC, Detroit, MI, Fayetteville, NC, Fort Myers-Naples, FL,
Greenville-New Bern-Jacksonville, NC, Las Vegas, NV, Philadelphia, PA, Middlesex, NJ, Monmouth, NJ,
Morristown, NJ, Tampa-Saint Petersburg, FL, West Palm Beach-Boca Raton, FL, and Wilmington, DE.

We seek to secure and maintain a leadership position in the markets we serve by developing market-leading clusters
of radio stations in each of our markets. We operate our radio stations in clusters to capture a variety of demographic
listener groups, which we believe enhances our radio stations appeal to a wide range of advertisers. In addition, we
have been able to achieve operating efficiencies by consolidating office and studio space where possible to minimize
duplicative management positions and reduce overhead expenses.

On November 1, 2016 we completed our merger with Greater Media, Inc. ( Greater Media ) pursuant to an Agreement
and Plan of Merger (the Merger Agreement ) dated July 19, 2016, under which we acquired all of the issued and
outstanding common stock of Greater Media for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $240 million, subject

to a purchase price adjustment related to the sale of Greater Media s tower assets and other customary post-closing
purchase price adjustments and inclusive of the repayment of approximately $82 million of Greater Media s
outstanding debt and the payment of certain transaction expenses (the Merger ). The proceeds paid to the stockholders
of Greater Media in the Merger consisted of (i) approximately $94.4 million in cash and (ii) $25 million in shares of

the Company s Class A common stock, which is equal to 5,422,993 shares at a fixed value of $4.61 per share.

The selling stockholders listed in this prospectus are former stockholders of Greater Media that received shares of the
Company s Class A common stock as a result of the Merger. At the closing of the Merger, the Company entered into a
Registration Rights Agreement with such stockholders and BFTW LLC (the Registration Rights Agreement ),
requiring the Company, not later than twenty days following the closing of the Merger, to file a shelf registration
statement on Form S-3 with the SEC with respect to the resale of the shares of the Company s Class A common stock
received by such stockholders in the Merger. In addition, such stockholders are entitled to unlimited piggyback
registration rights with respect to the registration of any equity securities of the Company, subject to certain
limitations.

These registration rights are subject to conditions and limitations, including the right of the underwriters of an offering
to limit the number of shares held by such selling stockholders to be included in such offering. Subject to certain
exceptions, the Company is generally required to bear all expenses of registration (other than underwriting discounts
and commissions and certain travel expenses). The Registration Rights Agreement also places indemnity obligations
on the Company, to indemnify the selling stockholders, under certain circumstances, and on the selling stockholders,
to indemnify the Company under certain circumstances.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This registration statement contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation

Reform Act of 1995, which relate to future, not past, events. All statements other than statements of historical fact
included in this document are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on the current

beliefs and expectations of the Company s management and are subject to known and unknown risks and uncertainties.

Words or expressions such as expects, anticipates, intends, plans, believes, estimates, may, will,
should, would, seek, forecast, or other similar expressions help identify forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements by their nature address matters that are, to different degrees, uncertain. Although the
Company believes the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are based upon reasonable
assumptions, it can give no assurance that the expectations will be attained or that any deviation will not be material.
Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the
date on which they are made. The Company and Greater Media undertake no obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties, and actual results or events may differ
materially from those projected or implied in those statements. Factors that could cause actual results or events to
differ materially from these forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

the ability to successfully combine the businesses of the Company and Greater Media and the ability to
successfully integrate the stations acquired in the asset exchange with CBS Radio;

the ability of the Company to achieve the expected cost savings, synergies and other benefits from the
acquisition of Greater Media and the asset exchange with CBS Radio within the expected time frames or at
all;

the incurrence of significant transaction -related fees and costs in connection with the acquisition of Greater
Media;

the incurrence of unexpected costs or liabilities relating to the integration of Greater Media and the stations
acquired in the asset exchange with CBS Radio;

the risk that the acquisition of Greater Media may not be accretive to the Company s current stockholders;

the risk that the acquisition of Greater Media may prevent the Company from acting on future opportunities
to enhance stockholder value;

the impact of the issuance of the Merger Shares in connection with the acquisition of Greater Media;
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the risk that any identifiable intangible assets recorded due to the acquisition of Greater Media could become
impaired;

external economic forces that could have a material adverse impact on the Company s advertising revenues
and results of operations;

the ability of the Company s radio stations to compete effectively in their respective markets for advertising
revenues and respond to changes in technology, standards and services that affect the radio industry;

the Company s substantial debt levels;

the loss of key personnel; and

other economic, business, competitive, and regulatory factors affecting the businesses of the Company and
Greater Media generally, including those set forth in the Company s filings with the SEC.
All written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to the Company or Greater Media or persons acting on
behalf of the Company or Greater Media are expressly qualified in their entirety by such factors. For additional
information with respect to these factors, please see the section entitled Where You Can Find More Information;
Incorporation by Reference beginning on page 2 of this registration statement.
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in our Class A common stock involves significant risks. Our business, financial condition, and results

of operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these risks. The trading price of our Class A common

stock could decline due to any of these risks, and you may lose all or part of your investment. Before you make an

investment decision regarding the securities, you should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described under
Risk Factors in any applicable prospectus supplement and in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, and in any

updates to those Risk Factors in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, together with all of the other information

appearing in this prospectus or incorporated by reference into this prospectus and any applicable prospectus

supplement, in light of your particular investment objectives and financial circumstances. The risks described in those

documents are not the only ones that we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we

currently deem immaterial may also affect our business operations, our financial results and the value of the securities.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We are filing the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part to permit the holders named in the section
entitled Selling Stockholders to resell shares of our Class A common stock in a registered offering, as described under
Plan of Distribution. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of these shares by the selling stockholders.

The selling stockholders will pay any underwriting discounts and commissions and transfer taxes incurred by the
selling stockholders in disposing of their shares. We will bear all other costs, fees and expenses incurred in effecting
the registration of the shares covered by this prospectus, including, without limitation, all registration and filing fees,
NASDAQ Global Market listing fees, printing fees and fees and expenses of our counsel and our accountants.
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SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

We are registering the resale from time to time by the selling stockholders of up to 5,422,993 shares of our Class A
common stock (collectively referred to as the selling stockholders ) in one or more offerings. The selling stockholders
acquired the shares of Class A common stock owned by them in connection with the Merger described above under

the heading About the Company.

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 29, 2016 regarding the beneficial ownership of our
Class A common stock by the selling stockholders named in the table below, who may offer, in the aggregate, up to
5,422,993 shares of our Class A common stock. We do not know if, when or in what amounts the selling stockholders
may offer their shares for sale. The selling stockholders may sell some, all or none of the shares held by them. The
selling stockholders reserve the right to accept or reject, in whole or in part, any proposed sale of any shares of our
Class A common stock currently held by the selling stockholders. Because the number of shares the selling
stockholders may offer and sell is not presently known, we cannot estimate the number of shares that will continue to
be held by the selling stockholders. This table, however, presents the maximum number of shares of Class A common
stock that each selling stockholder may offer pursuant to this prospectus and the number of shares of Class A common
stock, if any, that each selling stockholder would beneficially own after the sale of such maximum number of shares,
assuming no acquisitions of additional shares of Class A common stock take place.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3(d) of the Exchange Act and includes voting or
investment power with respect to our securities.

Shares Beneficially
Shares Beneficially Owned
Owned After the
Prior to the Offering Shares Offering

Name of Selling Stockholder Number Percent (1) Being Sold Number Percent (1)
Cristina Bordes 2009 Gift Trust (2) 650,204.773 5.4% 650,204.773 0 0%
Lee Bordes 2013 GRAT #4 (3) 56,603.334 * 56,603.334 0 0%
Lee Bordes 2013 GRAT #5 (4) 103,547.006 i 103,547.006 0 0%
Lee Bordes 2014 GRAT #4 (5) 34,795.303 * 34,795.303 0 0%
Lee Bordes 2014 GRAT #6 (6) 127,089.047 1.0% 127,089.047 0 0%
Lee Bordes 2014 GRAT #7 (7) 210,750.259 1.7% 210,750.259 0 0%
Lee Bordes 2015 GRAT #1 (8) 68,944.826 i 68,944.826 0 0%
Lee Bordes 2015 GRAT #4 (9) 72,994.520 * 72,994.520 0 0%
Lee Bordes 2015 GRAT #5 (10) 224,387.232 1.9% 224,387.232 0 0%
Lee Bordes 2015 GRAT #6 (11) 282,065.588 2.3% 282,065.588 0 0%
Lee Bordes 2015 GRAT #7 (12) 310,537.177 2.6% 310,537.177 0 0%
Lee Bordes 2016 GRAT #2 (13) 102,064.972 * 102,064.972 0 0%
Lee Bordes 2016 GRAT #3 (14) 98,583.503 i 98,583.503 0 0%
Lee Bordes Revocable Trust (15) 969,140.812 8.0% 969,140.812 0 0%
Peter A. Bordes Marital Trust (16) 227,497.810 1.9% 227,497.810 0 0%
Peter A. Bordes, Jr. 2009 Gift Trust (17) 650,204.773 5.4% 650,204.773 0 0%
Stephanie Bordes 2009 Gift Trust (18) 583,377.292 4.8% 583,377.292 0 0%
Stephen Bordes 2009 Gift Trust (19) 650,204.773 5.4% 650,204.773 0 0%
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Total (20) 5,422,993.0 44.8 % 5,422,993.0 0

*  Denotes less than 1.0% of beneficial ownership.

(1) Applicable percentage ownership is based on 12,112,142 shares of Class A common stock outstanding as of
December 29, 2016, together with securities exercisable or convertible into shares of Class A common stock
within 60 days of such date.

(2) Includes 104,032.778 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership.
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All, a portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price
adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees of the
trust and may be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock
that are beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of
Class A common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

Includes 9,056.535 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the terms
of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a portion or
none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price adjustment
provisions of the Merger Agreement. Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and may be deemed
to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are beneficially owned
by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A common stock held by
the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

Includes 16,567.523 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price
adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and may
be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are
beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A
common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

Includes 5,567.249 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the terms
of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a portion or
none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price adjustment
provisions of the Merger Agreement. Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and may be deemed
to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are beneficially owned
by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A common stock held by
the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

Includes 20,334.250 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price
adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and may
be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are
beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A
common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

Includes 33,720.046 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price
adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and may
be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are
beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A
common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

Includes 11,031.174 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price
adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and may
be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are
beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A
common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.
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Includes 11,679.125 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price
adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and may
be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that
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are beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A
common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

(10) Includes 35,901.962 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price
adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and may
be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are
beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A
common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

(11) Includes 45,130.500 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price
adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and may
be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are
beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A
common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

(12) Includes 49,685.955 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price
adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and may
be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are
beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A
common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

(13) Includes 16,330.398 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price
adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and may
be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are
beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A
common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

(14) Includes 15,773.363 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price
adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Cristina Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and may
be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are
beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A
common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

(15) Includes 155,062.551 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price
adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Voting and investment decisions for the trust are made by its
trustees, acting by majority vote. Peter A. Bordes, Jr., Cristina Bordes, Stephanie L. Bordes, Stephen M. Bordes
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. currently serve as trustees. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership
of the shares held by the trust.

(16) Includes 36,399.655 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to
the terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership.

All, a portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase
price adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Voting and investment decisions for the trust are
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made by its trustees, acting by majority vote. Peter A. Bordes, Jr., Cristina Bordes, Stephanie L. Bordes,
Stephen M. Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert currently serve as trustees. Each of the trustees disclaims
beneficial ownership of the shares held by the trust.
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(17) Includes 104,032.778 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the

terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price

adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Peter A. Bordes, Jr. and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and

may be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are

beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A

common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

(18) Includes 93,340.380 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price

adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Stephanie Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and

may be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are
beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A
common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

(19) Includes 104,032.778 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the trust does not currently have beneficial ownership. All, a
portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the trust in accordance with the purchase price

adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement. Stephen Bordes and Stephen F. Lappert are the trustees and may

be deemed to have the shared power to vote and dispose of the shares of Class A common stock that are
beneficially owned by such trust. Each of the trustees disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of Class A
common stock held by the trust, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest.

(20) Includes an aggregate of 867,679 shares of Class A common stock that are currently being held in escrow
pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement and as to which the selling stockholders do not currently have

beneficial ownership. All, a portion or none of such escrowed stock may be released to the selling stockholders in

accordance with the purchase price adjustment provisions of the Merger Agreement.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The selling stockholders may sell our Class A common stock from time to time in any of the ways described below or
in any combination thereof:

to or through underwriters or dealers;

through one or more agents;

in at the market to or through market makers or into an existing market for the securities;

in ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the broker-dealer solicits purchasers;

by pledge to secure debts and other obligations;

directly to purchasers or to a single purchaser; or

any other method permitted pursuant to applicable law.
The distribution of our Class A common stock by the selling stockholders may be effected from time to time in one or
more transactions:

at a fixed price or prices, which may be changed from time to time;

at market prices prevailing at the time of sale;

at prices related to such prevailing market prices; or

at negotiated prices.
These sales may be effected in transactions:

on any national securities exchange or quotation service on which our common stock may be listed or quoted
at the time of sale, including the New York Stock Exchange;
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in the over-the-counter market;

otherwise than on such exchanges or services or in the over-the-counter market;

through the writing of options, whether the options are listed on an options exchange or otherwise (including
the issuance by the applicable selling stockholder of derivative securities);

through the settlement of short sales; or

any combination of the foregoing.
To the extent required by law, this prospectus may be amended or supplemented from time to time to describe a
specific plan of distribution. Any prospectus supplement relating to a particular offering of our common stock by the
selling stockholders may include the following information to the extent required by law:

the name or names of the selling stockholders and the amounts to be sold by them;

the terms of the offering;

the names of any underwriters or agents;

the purchase price of the securities;

any delayed delivery arrangements;

any underwriting discounts and other items constituting underwriter compensation;

any initial public offering price; and

any discounts or concessions allowed, reallowed or paid to dealers.
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Offers to purchase the Class A common stock being offered by this prospectus may be solicited directly. Agents may
also be designated to solicit offers to purchase the Class A common stock from time to time. Any agent involved in
the offer or sale of our Class A common stock will be identified in a prospectus supplement.

If a dealer is utilized in the sale of the Class A common stock being offered by this prospectus, the Class A common
stock will be sold to the dealer, as principal. The dealer may then resell the Class A common stock to the public at
varying prices to be determined by the dealer at the time of resale.

If an underwriter is utilized in the sale of the Class A common stock being offered by this prospectus, an underwriting
agreement will be executed with the underwriter at the time of sale and the name of any underwriter will be provided
in the prospectus supplement that the underwriter will use to make resales of the Class A common stock to the public.
In connection with the sale of the Class A common stock, the selling stockholders, or the purchasers of Class A
common stock for whom the underwriter may act as agent, may compensate the underwriter in the form of
underwriting discounts or commissions. The underwriter may sell the Class A common stock to or through dealers,
and those dealers may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from the
underwriters and/or commissions from the purchasers for which they may act as agent. Unless otherwise indicated in a
prospectus supplement, an agent will be acting on a best efforts basis and a dealer will purchase securities as a
principal, and may then resell the securities at varying prices to be determined by the dealer.

Any compensation paid to underwriters, dealers or agents in connection with the offering of the Class A common
stock, and any discounts, concessions or commissions allowed by underwriters to participating dealers will be
provided in the applicable prospectus supplement, if required. Underwriters, dealers and agents participating in the
distribution of the Class A common stock may be deemed to be underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act,
and any discounts and commissions received by them and any profit realized by them on resale of the Class A
common stock may be deemed to be underwriting discounts and commissions. We may enter into agreements to
indemnify underwriters, dealers and agents against civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to
contribute to payments they may be required to make in respect thereof and to reimburse those persons for certain
expenses.

The selling stockholders may sell shares of the Class A common stock directly to purchasers. In this case, they may
not engage underwriters or agents in the offer and sale of such shares.

To facilitate the offering of securities, certain persons participating in the offering may engage in transactions that
stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of the Class A common stock. This may include over-allotments or
short sales of the securities, which involve the sale by persons participating in the offering of more securities than
were sold to them. In these circumstances, these persons would cover such over-allotments or short positions by
making purchases in the open market or by exercising their over-allotment option, if any. In addition, these persons
may stabilize or maintain the price of the Class A common stock by bidding for or purchasing securities in the open
market or by imposing penalty bids, whereby selling concessions allowed to dealers participating in the offering may
be reclaimed if securities sold by them are repurchased in connection with stabilization transactions. The effect of
these transactions may be to stabilize or maintain the market price of the Class A common stock at a level above that
which might otherwise prevail in the open market. These transactions may be discontinued at any time.

The specific terms of any lock-up provisions in respect of any given offering will be described in the applicable
prospectus supplement.

The underwriters, dealers and agents may engage in transactions with us, or perform services for us, in the ordinary
course of business for which they receive compensation.
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We are not aware of any plans, arrangements or understandings between any of the selling stockholders and any
underwriter, broker-dealer or agent regarding the sale of shares of our Class A common stock by the selling
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stockholders. We cannot assure you that the selling stockholders will sell any or all of the shares of our Class A
common stock offered by them pursuant to this prospectus. In addition, we cannot assure you that the selling
stockholders will not transfer, devise or gift the shares of our Class A common stock by other means not described in
this prospectus. Moreover, shares of Class A common stock covered by this prospectus that qualify for sale pursuant
to Rule 144 under the Securities Act may be sold under Rule 144 rather than pursuant to this prospectus.

From time to time, one or more of the selling stockholders may pledge, hypothecate or grant a security interest in
some or all of the shares owned by them. The pledgees, secured parties or persons to whom the shares have been
hypothecated will, upon foreclosure, be deemed to be selling stockholders. The number of a selling stockholder s
shares offered under this prospectus will decrease as and when it takes such actions. The plan of distribution for that
selling stockholder s shares will otherwise remain unchanged. In addition, a selling stockholder may, from time to
time, sell the shares short, and, in those instances, this prospectus may be delivered in connection with the short sales
and the shares offered under this prospectus may be used to cover short sales.

A selling stockholder may enter into hedging transactions with broker-dealers and the broker-dealers may engage in
short sales of the shares in the course of hedging the positions they assume with that selling stockholder, including,
without limitation, in connection with distributions of the shares by those broker-dealers. A selling stockholder may
enter into option or other transactions with broker-dealers that involve the delivery of the shares offered hereby to the
broker-dealers, who may then resell or otherwise transfer those securities.

A selling stockholder which is an entity may elect to make a pro rata in-kind distribution of the shares of our Class A
common stock to its members, partners or shareholders. In such event we may file a prospectus supplement to the
extent required by law in order to permit the distributees to use the prospectus to resell the Class A common stock
acquired in the distribution. A selling stockholder which is an individual may make gifts of shares of our Class A
common stock covered hereby. Such donees may use the prospectus to resell the shares or, if required by law, we may
file a prospectus supplement naming such donees.
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LEGAL MATTERS

On behalf of the Company, Latham & Watkins LLP will pass upon certain legal matters relating to the issuance and
sale of the Class A common stock offered hereby. Additional legal matters may be passed upon for us, the selling
stockholders or any underwriters, dealers or agents, by counsel that we will name in the applicable prospectus
supplement.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and for each of the two
years in the period ended December 31, 2015 have been incorporated in this Prospectus by reference to the Company s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 in reliance on the report, including reference to
the schedule, included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K, of Crowe Horwath LLP, independent registered public
accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The consolidated financial statements of Greater Media as of and for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2015
have been incorporated in this Prospectus by reference to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the

SEC on November 4, 2016 in reliance on the report of WithumSmith+Brown, PC, Independent Accountants, given on
the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.
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